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To Our
Shareholders

Dear Shareholder:

Turmoil, uncertainty, turbulence, recession, and bailout are all terms that are associated with 2008. However, the terms successful,
growth, quality, safety, and performance are words that I associate with your company over the past year. The net interest margin
increased 19 basis points to 4.14% as we successfully implemented a strategic decision to shorten liability duration. Growth in net
loans of $20,774,000, while the consumer was being told by the media that banks were not granting loans, was exceptional. In
addition, quality in the loan portfolio led to a ratio of net charge-offs to average loans of only 0.04% during a time that industry
wide charge-offs were increasing substantially. The safety of a community bank nearing its 75" anniversary was sought during the
latter half of 2008 as an increasing number of bank failures were reported. Despite the negative economic events of 2008, Penns
Woods Bancorp, Inc. continued to perform at a high level as illustrated by core earnings (net income excluding net security losses),
increasing $430,000 to $9,343,000.

Strategic initiatives of 2008 will carry into the future and provide the foundation for the future success of the company. Delivery
platforms were strengthened in several areas. Remote deposit capture was emphasized as a means to further entrench our brand
in the minds of customers, while providing an increased level of customer service to those on the fringe of our market footprint.
We also completed the installation of a new teller platform. The system will not only provide a better customer experience, but
will also dovetail more seamlessly into our fraud detection programs to better protect our customers and company.

In addition to the technological advances, we continued to stick to our successful business model. We are a community bank that
focuses on the core banking principles of attracting deposits and lending these to solid customers within our market. We
accomplished this by building core deposits, not by using rate as a selling point, but by focusing on customer service. In addition,
we were able to increase loans outstanding without sacrificing quality or rate. In essence, the future was not mortgaged in order
to have short-term profits.

It seems that not a day goes by without some mention of the government’s injection of capital into the banking system, commonly
known as TARP. We did not apply for any government funding. Our review of the program led us to believe that shareholder value
would not be increased by accepting taxpayer money at a 5% cost, which would leave little room to generate the appropriate
financial return. Our well capitalized status, ability to access liquidity, sound credit quality, and historically low risk tolerance
allowed us to turn down the opportunity to receive taxpayer money, simply put; it was not needed to further grow the company. We
would rather focus on serving our customers and communities than by spending valuable resources dealing with government
regulations that may restrict the ability to do what we do best, community banking.

I would not be providing full disclosure if I failed to mention a significant item that negatively impacted the company during the
past year. We, as with many financial institutions, were faced with other than temporary impairment charges. The charges were
all related to the equity segment of the investment portfolio. The longer the current economic environment persists, the more likely
that actions such as additional impairment charges or the sale of certain positions may be taken. We will continue to monitor the
environment and will take the necessary actions to provide the best opportunity for long-term success.

2009 brings a time of reflection as Jersey Shore State Bank will be commemorating its diamond, or 75th Anniversary. In today’s
uncertain environment, it is difficult to imagine a company surviving, let alone flourishing, as your company has for such a long
period of time. The success of the company is a testament to the dedication and skill of employees past and present. I am proud
of our employees in terms of service provided, dedication to the community, and overall professionalism.

We will maintain the path taken as we move forward through 2009. We will not sacrifice the future in order to obtain short-term
gain. Shareholder value is built over the long term through credit quality, deposit focus, and sound risk management. Your

company has successfully managed these items for decades and with your help will for decades into the future.

Sincerely,

-Ronald A. ¥
President
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Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet

December 31,

(In Thousands, Except Share Data) 2008 2007
ASSETS:
Noninterest-bearing balances ooy svmreiaivnm Sea Sia @i SIa s amg s S 16563 $ 15.417
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions . ........... ... ..., 18 16
Total cash and cashequivalents ...............coiiiiiiiiineiinnnnnnn. 16,581 15.433
Investment securities, available for sale, at fairvalue. . .......... ... ... ... ....... 208,251 214,455
Investment securities, held to maturity, (fair value of $136 and $279) .............. 135 277
LOans el FOrSale . sorcanimimas sunitesmmis g, S0 e et sain AR M 3.622 4214
LAOANS o vavr g st s 0000 S8 S D SR T S SRR R TR S 381,478 360,478
Less: Allowance for 10an 10SS€8 . . .....ovii it ittt it ei it i e 4,356 4.130
I8 72 T o L S 377,122 356,348
Premisesand equipmient, NEE. ... coomp smmsaunmmion s sissimime s s swaamess 7,865 6,774
Acerned INTerest TECEIVADIE .« .ov s v suiiis s o sias s wrsiasiss /st sisian aiers aisn sain s aias 3614 3,343
Batik-oWhed 111e ISHTANCE. v s s s el e iias Sranmesams aesms 14,546 12,375
Investment in limited partnerships ........ ... i 4,727 5,439
GOOAWILL oz sivvsimenni SR e PRSI PG P R SRR TR PR 3,032 3,032
Otherassels cvvsae vl oyl Baeusanm Vi S B RERaEE aeEle 13,308 6.448
TOTAL ASSE TS . e e S 652.803 § 628,138
LIABILITIES:
nterest-beating dEDOSIS . o ovmmmmnn s waismmd i oo e T TR S 345333 § 314,351
Noninterest-bearing depOsIS: wu e sn v mwm s s e i desmeeaes 1eeesmm 76,035 74,671
Total deposits o vomssrman it Sas SmsaseuliG e Ml 421,368 389.022
SHOrf-tErin DOTTOWINEE  » o ancmmmi wsms st @i el smiis i Mvases s v sms 73,946 55,315
Long-term borrowings, Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB). .. .................... 86,778 106,378
Accried interest payable i svn varesmeid sy sadiniis Te s RS G e 1,317 1,744
Ofer-lIghilities: « cici sss biss 0 hdisss naa el s s b ol Gt h s dlbadsila s nemaks 8.367 5,120
TOTAL LIABILITIES . ..ottt et et e e e e ene s 591,776 557,579

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common stock, par value $8.33; 10,000,000 shares authorized;

4,010,528 and 4,006,934 sharesissued . . ..., ...ttt 33421 33,391
Additional paid-incapital . ccvvvuus osianini o e e eEE R e 17,959 17.888
Refained earfingsnos s aeeaiianmh da sl S s I ¥l I 28,177 27,707
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:

Net unrealized loss on available for sale securities . ....................... (8,486) (2,159)

Defined benefitplan. . . ... ... i (3,780) (1,375)
Less: Treasury stock at cost, 179,028 and 131,302 shares . .............coovuvnn.. (6,264) (4,893)

TOTAL SHAREHOEDERS "EQUITY: 15 wunsmns s i nosmamisems swsmsias 61,027 70,559
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ................... Y 652803 3 628,138

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.




Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31,

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 2008 2007 2006
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME:
Loansinelnding I0es. .« - oo s e tee Lo g S L S L s $ 25,228 3 26,099 $ 24878
Investment securities:
TaxXable ..ottt e 5,241 4,098 3,577
MTATBRBTINE s ceinr o sirmyiss s s G196 (e ARG Gres EAHEATSS(PoH] e s 4,871 4,357 4,027
Dividend and other interestincome . ............coiiiiiininnnnn. 768 1,395 1,271
TOTAL INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME. .. ............. 36,108 35,949 33,753
INTEREST EXPENSE:
DEpOSIS=: ook sitwbin, He SSueisn i drie diepes el A SR Ee s 9,670 10,951 8,908
Short-term bOrroWIngs . . .. ..ottt 1,181 1,639 1,503
Long-term DOITOWINGS . . ..ottt et et e 3,981 3,857 3,799
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE. .. ...0civviviinrnernneernnnnns 14,832 16,447 14,210
NET INTEREST INCOME . i srnvmomms oemiaamns dmmsersn 21.276 19,502 19,543
PROVISION FOR LOAN LIOSSES ... cvcsinmuin v s sode 375 150 635
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION
FORLOAN LOSSES . .. ... it eieeaenas 20,901 19,352 18,908
NON-INTEREST INCOME:
T Lo L e o e e e e po o 2,289 2,246 2,366
Securities (10S§es) BaAINS, ML wawinr i waiwsatassas sassiama Faissama (2,031) (54) 1,679
Bank-owned life inSUTance . .......cvciiiineiit i i i s 472 410 374
Gainon sale oF loansw s smy s msiia seasirmin S st S, ey 882 921 853
ISUrance ComMISSIONS s o nivens Vil S e i MmN dannEys s s 1,928 2222 2,281
) e To1a1 4 161n) 1 |- O S 1.916 1,733 1,476
TOTAL NON-INTEREST INCOME. .. ........oviiiiiiinnn. . 5,456 7,478 9,029
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE:
Salaries aAnd-employee BERCTIS v v v wamsimssian sstsmmsiaries s s 9,634 9,078 8,833
CICCUpANCY SXPENSe; NEL s vwmim v wasis maaritns svam s BIaass, Sl s v 1,288 1,306 1,137
Furniture and equipment eXpense. . ... ..o.uevi et 1.182 1,126 1,201
Pennsylvania 'shares tAX eXpense. .« un ivihsnways Sapeienw nae aavens 421 643 598
Amortization of investment in limited partnerships.................... 712 761 245
Other EXPENSES & o\ttt e e 4,712 4,402 4315
TOTAL NON-INTERESTEXPENSE. .. .......cvviiriiinnn... 17,949 17,316 16,329
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX PROVISION .................. 8,408 9.514 11,608
INCOME TAX PROVISION ... .iiiiiiiiiiiieiieeneennns 405 637 1,961
NET INCOME: v v 5405 050 0m s iis S80easiaigii oy sieinmi. s $ 8,003 S 8,877 $ 9,647
NET INCOME PER SHARE —BASIC ..................ccoiiun.. $ 2.07 S 228 $ 245
NET INCOME PER SHARE -~ DILUTED ........................ $ 2.07 S 228 $ 245
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING — BASIC . ...... 3,859,724 3,886,277 3,934,138
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING - DILUTED .. .. 3,859,833 3,886,514 3,934,617

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.




Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Shareholders’ Equity

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Stock Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Treasury Shareholders’
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Equity
Balance, December 31, 2005 4,002,159 $ 33351 $ 17,772 $22938 $ 80 $ (992) $ 73,919
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
for pension obligations, net of tax
benefit of $298 (579) (579)
Comprehensive income:

Net income 9,647 9,647
Other comprehensive income 1,289 1,289
Dividends declared ($1.73 per share) (6,802) (6,802)

Common shares issued for employee
stock purchase plan 1,355 11 38 49
Purchase of treasury stock (76,400 shares) (2,929) (2,929)
Balance, December 31, 2006 4,003,514 33,362 17,810 25,783 1,560 (3,921) 74,594
Comprehensive income:
Net income 8,877 8,877
Other comprehensive loss (5,094) (5,094)
Dividends declared ($1.79 per share) (6,953) (6,953)
Stock options exercised 330 3 5 8
Common shares issued for employee
stock purchase plan 3,090 26 73 99
Purchase of treasury stock (28,530 shares) 972) (972)
Balance, December 31, 2007 4,006,934 33,391 17,888 27,707 (3,534) (4,893) 70,559
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
for endorsement split-dollar life
insurance arrangement 437) (437)
Comprehensive loss:
Net income 8,003 8,003
Other comprehensive loss (8,732) (8,732)
Dividends declared ($1.84 per share) (7,096) (7,096)
Stock options exercised 330 3 8 11
Common shares issued for employee
stock purchase plan 3,264 27 63 90
Purchase of treasury stock (47,726 shares) (1,371) (1,371)
Balance, December 31, 2008 4,010,528 $ 33421 $§ 17959 $§ 28,177 §$(12,266) $ (6,264) S 61,027
Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006
Net Income $ 8,003 $ 8,877 $ 9,647
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:
Change in unrealized (loss) gain on available
for sale securities (7,667) (4,334) 2,397
Net realized loss (gain) included in net income,
net of (benefit) taxes of $(691),
$(18), and $571 1,340 36 (1,108)
(6,237) (4,298) 1,289
Defined benefit pension plan:
Net transition asset 2) 2) —
Prior service cost 17 17 —
Net loss (2,420) (811) —
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (8,732) (5.,094) 1,289
Comprehensive (loss) income $ (729) $ 3,783 $ 10,936

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,
(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NELINCOME . .\ ottt ettt e e e e $ 8,003 $ 8,877 $ 9,647
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization. . . ...........uvereienennnn... 663 680 744
Provision for loan losses. .. ...... .. .. i i 375 150 635
Accretion and amortization of investment security
discounts and premiums, net . ......... ... (1,361) (1,011 (784)
Securities losses (gaing), net. .. ... 2,031 54 (1,679)
Originations of loans held forsale............................ (39,456) (43,783) (37,192)
Proceeds of loans held forsale. . ......... ... ... ... ......... 40,930 44,206 37,874
Gainofsaleofloans. .......... ... ... . i (882) 921) (853)
Increases in bank-owned life insurance . ....................... (472) (410) (374)
Other, net .. ..o (2,830) (214) (29)
Net cash provided by operating activities. .. ................. 7,001 7,628 7,989
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment securities available for sale:
Proceeds fromsales .......... .. ... . . ... ... ... .. ... 40,169 60,485 76,249
Proceeds from calls and maturities. . ........................ 6,759 5,233 7,477
Purchases. ... ... (50,995) (98,799) (78,241)
Investment securities held to maturity:
Proceeds from calls and maturities. . .. ...................... 4 12 25
Purchases. . ... 176 - (25)
Netincrease in loans . ..., (21,613) (374) (22,353)
Acquisition of bank premises and equipment, net. ............... (1,754) (717) (1,072)
Proceeds from the sale of foreclosed assets. . ................... 112 65 329
Purchase of bank-owned life insurance .. ...................... (1,699) (619) (254)
Investment in limited partnership. . ........................... - (1,250) (1,646)
Proceeds from redemption of regulatory stock .................. (4,629) 5,081 3,630
Purchases of regulatory stock. .. ........... .. .. ... ... 4,606 (6,816) (2,899)
Net cash used for investing activities . . ..................... (28,864) (37,699) (18,780)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase (decrease) in interest-bearing deposits .. ............ 30,982 (7,680) 40,881
Net increase in noninterest-bearing deposits . . .................. 1,364 1,511 1,781
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings. . .............. 18,631 20,618 (19,306)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings, FHLB ................... 10,000 40,000 -
Repayment of long-term borrowings, FHLB. ................... (29,600) (16,500) (1,600)
Dividends paid . . ... ... (7,096) (6,953) (6,802)
Issuance of common stock . ...... ... ... ... . L 90 99 49
Stock options exercised . ....... ... i 11 8 -
Purchase of treasury stock ... .......... ... (1,371) (972) (2,929)
Net cash provided by financing activities. ... ................ 23,011 30,131 12,074
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ............. 1,148 60 1,283
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING .................. 15,433 15,373 14,090
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING. .. ................... $ 16,581 $ 15,433 $ 15,373
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid $ 15,259 $ 16,235 $ 13,786
Income taxes paid 2,085 1,610 2,645
Transfer of loans to foreclosed real estate 464 75 278

See Accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements




PENNS WOODS BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly owned

subsidiaries, Jersey Shore State Bank (the “Bank’), Woods Real Estate Development Co., Inc., Woods Investment Company, Inc.,
and The M Group Inc. D/B/A The Comprehensive Financial Group (“The M Group™), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank
(collectively, the “Company™). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Nature of Business

The Bank engages in a full-service commercial banking business, making available to the community a wide range of financial
services including, but not limited to, installment loans, credit cards, mortgage and home equity loans, lines of credit, construction
financing, farm loans, community development loans, loans to non-profit entities and local government, and various types of time
and demand deposits including, but not limited to, checking accounts, savings accounts, clubs, money market deposit accounts,
ccrtif{ijcaé[t(lzjs ci;f deposit, and IRAs. Deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) to the extent
provided by law.

The financial services are provided by the Bank to individuals, partnerships, non-profit organizations, and corporations through
its thirteen offices located in Clinton, Lycoming, and Centre Counties, Pennsylvania.

Woods Real Estate Development Co., Inc. engages in real estate transactions on behalf of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. and the Bank.
Woods Investment Company, Inc., a Delaware holding company, is engaged in investing activities.

The M Group engages in securities brokerage and financial planning services, which include the sale of life insurance products,
annuities, and estate planning services.

Operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on a corporate-wide basis. Accordingly, all financial service
operations are considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses,
deferred tax assets and liabilities, and the valuation of real estate acquired through, or in lieu of, foreclosure on settlement of debt.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks and interest-earning deposits. Interest-earning deposits mature within one
year and are carried at cost. Net cash flows are reported for loan, deposit. and short-term borrowing transactions.

Restrictions on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Based on deposit levels, the Company must maintain cash and other reserves with the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia (FRB).

Investment Securities

Investment securities are classified at the time of purchase, based on management’s intention and ability, as securities held to
maturity or securities available for sale. Debt securities acquired with the intent and ability to hold to maturity are stated at cost,
adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of discount, which are computed using the interest method and recognized as
adjustments of interest income. Certain other debt securities have been classified as available for sale to serve principally as a
source of liquidity. Unrealized holding gains and losses for available for sale securities are reported as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity, net of tax, until realized. Realized security gains and losses are computed using the specific identification
method for debt securities and the average cost method for marketable equity securities. Interest and dividends on investment
securities are recognized as income when earned.

Securities are periodically reviewed for other—lhan-temﬁorary impairment based upon a number of factors, including, but not
limited to, the length of time and extent to which the market value has been less than cost, the financial condition of the underlying
issuer, the ability of the issuer to meet contractual obligations, the likelihood of the security’s ability to recover any decline in its
market value, and management’s intent and ability to hold the security for a period of time sufficient to allow for a recovery in
market value. Among the factors that are considered in determining management’s intent and ability is a review of the Company’s
capital adequacy, interest rate risk position, and liquidity. The assessment of a security’s ability to recover any decline in market
value, the ability of the issuer to meet contractual obligations, and management’s intent and ability requires considerable judgment.
A decline in value that is considered to be other-than-temporary is recorded as a loss within noninterest income in the Consolidated
Statement of Income.

Investment securities fair values are based on observed market prices. Certain investment securities do not have observed bid
prices and their fair value is based on instruments with similar risk elements. Since regulatory stock is redeemable at par, the
Company carries it at cost.

Loans

Loans are stated at the principal amount outstanding, net of deferred fees, unamortized loan fees and costs, and the allowance for
loan losses. Interest on loans is recognized as income when earned on the accrual method. The Company’s general policy has
been to stop accruing interest on loans when it is determined a reasonable doubt exists as to the collectibility of additional interest.
Income is subsequently recognized only to the extent that cash payments are received provided the loan is not delinquent in
payment and, in management’s judgment, the borrower has the ability and intent to make future principal payments.

Loan origination and commitment fees as well as certain direct loan origination costs are being deferred and amortized as an
adjustment to the related loan’s yield over the contractual lives of the related loans.



Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents the amount which management estimates is adequate to provide for probable losses
inherent in its loan portfolio, as of the balance sheet date. The allowance method is used in providing for loan losses. Accordingly,
all loan losses are charged to the allowance and all recoveries are credited to it. The allowance for loan losses is established through
a provision for loan losses charged to operations. The provision for loan losses is based upon management’s quarterly review of
the loan portfolio. The purpose of the review is to assess loan quality, identify impaired loans, analyze delinquencies, ascertain
loan growth, evaluate potential charge-offs and recoveries, and assess general economic conditions in the markets served. An
external independent loan review is also performed annually for the Bank. Management remains committed to an aggressive
program of problem loan identification and resolution.

The allowance is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans by type, excluding loans for which a specific allowance
has been determined. Loss factors are based on management’s consideration of the nature of the portfolio segments, changes in
mix and volume of the loan portfolio, historical loan loss experience, and general economic conditions. In addition, management
considers industry standards and trends with respect to nonperforming loans and its knowledge and experience with specific
lending segments.

Although management believes that it uses the best information available to make such determinations and that the allowance for
loan losses is adequate at December 31, 2008, future adjustments could be necessary if circumstances or economic conditions differ
substantially from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations. A downturn in the local economy, rising
unemployment, or negative performance trends in financial information from borrowers could be indicators of subsequent
increased levels of nonperforming assets and possible charge-offs, which would normally require increased loan loss provisions.
An integral part of the periodic regulatory examination process is the review of the adequacy of the Bank’s loan loss allowance.
The regulatory agencies could require the Bank, based on their evaluation of information available at the time of their examination,
to provide additional loan loss provisions to further supplement the allowance.

Impaired loans are commercial and commercial real estate loans for which it is probable the Bank will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. The Bank individually evaluates such loans for impairment
and does not aggregate loans by major risk classifications. The definition of “impaired loans” is not the same as the definition of
“nonaccrual loans,” although the two categories overlap. The Bank may choose to place a loan on nonaccrual status due to payment
delinquency or uncertain collectibility, while not classifying the loan as impaired if the loan is not a commercial or commercial real
estate loan. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status and collateral value. The
amount of impairment for these types of loans is determined by the difference between the present value of the expected cash flows
related to the loan, using the original interest rate, and its recorded value, or as a practical expedient in the case of collateralized
loans, the difference between the fair value of the collateral and the recorded amount of the loans. When foreclosure is probable,
impairment is measured based on the fair value of the collateral.

Mortgage loans on one-to-four family properties and all consumer loans are large groups of smaller-balance homogeneous loans
and are measured for impairment collectively. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays, which are defined as 90 days or
less, generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays on a case-by-case basis
taking into consideration all circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower including the length of the delay, the borrower’s
prior payment record, and the amount of shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.

Loans Held for Sale

In general, fixed rate residential mortgage loans originated by the Bank are held for sale and are carried at cost due to their short
holding period, which can range from less than two weeks to a maximum of thirty days. Sold loans are not serviced by the Bank.
Proceeds from the sale of loans in excess of the carrying value are accounted for as a gain. Total gains on the sale of loans are
shown as a component of non-interest income within the consolidated statement of income.

Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale

Foreclosed assets held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated selling costs. Prior to foreclosure, the
value of the underlying loan is written down to the fair value of the real estate to be acquired by a charge to the allowance for loan
losses, if necessary. Any subsequent write-downs are charged against operating expenses. Net operating expenses and gains and
losses realized from disposition are included in non-interest expense and income, respectively.

Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using straight-line and

accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which range from five to ten years for furniture, fixtures,
and equipment and fifteen to forty years for buildings and improvements. Costs incurred for routine maintenance and repairs are
charged to operations as incurred. Costs of major additions and improvements are capitalized.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance

The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain officers and directors. Bank-owned life insurance is recorded at its
cash surrender value, or the amount that can be realized. Increases in the cash surrender value are recognized as a component of
non-interest income within the consolidated statement of income.

Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements
On January 1, 2008, the Company changed its accounting policy and recognized a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained

earnings totaling $437,000 related to account for certain endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangements in connection with
the adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 06-4, Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit
Aspects of Endorsement Split Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements.

Goodwill

The Company accounts for goodwill in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets. This statement, among other things, requires a two-step process for testing the impairment of goodwill
on at least an annual basis. This approach could cause more volatility in the Company’s reported net income because impairment
losses, if any, could occur irregularly and in varying amounts. The Company performs an annual impairment analysis of goodwill
for its purchased subsidiary, The M Group. Based on the fair value of this reporting unit, estimated using the expected present
value of future cash flows, no impairment of goodwill was recognized in 2008 and 2007.




Investments in Limited Partnerships
The Company is a limited partner in four partnerships at December 31, 2008 that provide low income elderly housing in the

Company’s geographic market area. The carrying value of the Company’s investments in limited partnerships was $4,727,000 at
December 31, 2008 and $5,439,000 at December 31, 2007. The Company is fully amortizing the investment in the partnership
entered into prior to 2005 over the fifteen-year holding period. The partnerships entered into after 2004 are being fully amortized
over the ten-year tax credit receipt period utilizing the straight-line method. The partnerships began being amortized once the
projects reached the level of occupancy needed to begin the ten year tax credit recognition period. Amortization of limited
partnership investments amounted to $712,000 in 2008, $761.000 in 2007, and $245,000 in 2006.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into off-balance sheet financial instruments. Those instruments consist of
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. When those instruments are funded or become payable, the Company
reports the amounts in its financial statements.

Advertising Cost
Advertising costs are generally expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB
Statement 109, effective January 1, 2007. FIN No. 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Benefits from tax
positions should be recognized in the financial statements only when it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained
upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority that would have full knowledge of all relevant information. A tax position
that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty
percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Tax positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold should be recognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is met.
Previously recognized tax positions that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be derecognized in
the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is no longer met. FIN No. 48 also provides guidance on the
accounting for and disclosure of unrecognized tax benefits, interest and penalties. Adoption of FIN No. 48 did not have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities result from temporary differences in financial and income tax methods of accounting, and are
reflected at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected
to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the
provision for income taxes.

Earnings Per Share
The Company provides dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share is calculated utilizing

net income as reported in the numerator and weighted average shares outstanding in the denominator. The computation of diluted
earnings per share differs in that the dilutive effects of any stock options are adjusted in the denominator.

Employee Benefits

Pension and employee benefits include contributions, determined actuarially, to a defined benefit retirement plan covering the
eligible employees of the Bank. The plan is funded on a current basis to the extent that it is deductible under existing federal tax
regulations. Pension and other employee benefits also include contributions to a defined contribution Section 401(k) plan covering
eligible employees. Contributions matching those made by eligible employees are funded throughout the year. In addition, an
elective contribution is made annually at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

The M Group Products and Income Recognition

The M Group product line is comprised primarily of annuities, life insurance, and mutual funds. The revenues generated from life
insurance sales are commission only, as The M Group does not underwrite the policies. Life insurance sales include permanent
and term policies with the majority of the policies written being permanent. Term life insurance policies are written for 10, 15, 20,
and 30 year terms with the majority of the policies being written for 20 years. None of these products are offered as an integral
part of lending activities.

Commissions from the sale of annuities are recognized at the time notice is received from the third party broker/dealer or an
insurance company that the transaction has been accepted and approved, which is also the time when commission income is
received.

Life insurance commissions are recognized at varying points based on the payment option chosen by the customer. Commissions
from monthly and annual payment plans are recognized at the start of each annual period for the life insurance, while quarterly and
semi-annual premium payments are recognized quarterly and semi-annually when the earnings process is complete. For example,
semi-annual payments on the first of January and July would result in commission income recognition on the first of January and
July, while payments on the first of January, April, July, and October would result in commission income recognition on those dates.
The potential for chargebacks only exists for those policies on a monthly payment plan since income is recognized at the beginning
of the annual coverage period versus at the time of each monthly payment. No liability is maintained for chargebacks as these are
removed from income at the time of the occurrence.

Stock Options
The Company maintains a stock option plan for directors and certain officers and employees with the last option grant being in

2000. All options were granted when the exercise price of the Company’s stock options was greater than or equal to the market
price of the underlying stock on the date of the grant, therefore, no compensation expense was recognized in the Company’s
financial statements.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income _ _
The Company is required to present accumulated other comprehensive income in a full set of general-purpose financial statements

for all periods presented. Accumulated other comprehensive income is comprised of unrealized holding gains (losses) on the
available for sale securities portfolio and the unrecognized components of net periodic benefit costs of the defined benefit pension
plan.



Segment Reporting

FAS No. 131, Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, requires that public business enterprises report
financial and descriptive information about their reportable operating segments. Based on the guidance provided by the Statement,
the Company has determined that its only reportable segment is Community Banking.

Reclassification of Comparative Amounts ) ) S
Certain items previously reported have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s reporting format. Such reclassifications
did not affect net income or shareholders’ equity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations, which establishes principles and

requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in an acquiree, including the recognition and measurement of goodwill acquired in a
business combination. FAS No. 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is
prohibited. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations or
financial position.

[n September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, which provides enhanced guidance for using fair
value to measure assets and liabilities. The standard applies whenever other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value. The Standard does not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances. FAS No. 157 is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years.
In February 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position No. 157-1, Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and
Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement
under Statement 13, which removed leasing transactions accounted for under FAS No. 13 and related guidance from the scope of
FAS No. 157. Also in February 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position No.157-2, Partial Deferral of the Effective Date of Statement
157, which deferred the effective date of FAS No. 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities to fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008. The adoption of this standard has not and is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company’s results of operations or financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 138, Employers ' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post Retirement
Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R). This Statement requires that employers measure plan assets
and obligations as of the balance sheet date. This requirement is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. The
other provisions of the Statement were effective as of the end of the fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006, for public
companies. The adoption of this standard has not and is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s results of
operations or financial position.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements - an amendment
of ARB No. 51. FAS No. 160 amends ARB No. 51 to establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest
in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary, which is
sometimes referred to as minority interest, is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in
the consolidated financial statements. Among other requirements, this statement requires consolidated net income to be reported
at amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest. It also requires disclosure, on
the face of the consolidated income statement, of the amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the
noncontrolling interest. FAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Earlier adoption is
prohibited. The adoption of this standard will not have an effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial position as
there are no noncontrolling interests.

In March 2008, the FASB issued FAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, to require
enhanced disclosures about derivative instruments and hedging activities. The new standard has revised financial reporting for
derivative instruments and hedging activities by requiring more transparency about how and why an entity uses derivative
instruments, how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under FAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities; and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position,
financial performance, and cash flows. FAS No. 161 requires disclosure of the fair values of derivative instruments and their gains
and losses in a tabular format. It also requires entities to provide more information about their liquidity by requiring disclosure of
derivative features that are credit risk-related. Further, it requires cross-referencing within footnotes to enable financial statement
users to locate important information about derivative instruments. FAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. The adoption of this
standard is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

In June 2008, the FASB ratified EITF Issue No. 08-4, Accounting for Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or
Contingently Adjusted Conversion Ratios. This Issue provides transition guidance for conforming changes made to EITF Issue No.
98-5, Accounting for Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently Adjusted Conversion Ratios, that
resulted from EITF Issue No. 00-27, Application of Issue No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible Instruments, and FAS No. 150, Accounting
for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liability and Equity. The conforming changes are effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008, with earlier application permitted. The adoption of this
FSP has not and is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 158-1, Conforming Amendments to the lllustrations in FASB Statements No. 87,
No. 88, and No. 106 and to the Related Staff Implementation Guides. This FSP provides conforming amendments to the illustrations
in FAS Statements No. 87, 88, and 106 and to related staff implementation guides as a result of the issuance of FAS Statement No.
158. The conforming amendments made by this FSP are effective as of the effective dates of Statement No. 158. The unaffected
guidance that this FSP codifies into Statements No. 87, 88, and 106 does not contain new requirements and therefore does not
require a separate effective date or transition method. The adoption of this FSP is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company’s results of operations or financial position.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 140-3, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets and Repurchase Financing
Transactions. This FSP concludes that a transferor and transferee should not separately account for a transfer of a financial asset
and a related repurchase financing unless (a) the two transactions have a valid and distinct business or economic purpose for being
entered into separately and (b) the repurchase financing does not result in the initial transferor regaining control over the financial




asset. The FSP is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning on or after November 15, 2008, and interim
periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of this FSP is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s results of
operations or financial position.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. 142-3, Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets. FSP 142-3 amends the factors
that should be considered in developing assumptions about renewal or extension used in estimating the useful life of a recognized
intangible asset under FAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. This standard is intended to improve the consistency
between the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under FAS No. 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to measure
the fair value of the asset under FAS No. 141R and other GAAP. FSP 142-3 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2008. The measurement provisions of this standard will apply only to intangible assets of the
Company acquired after the effective date. The adoption of this FSP is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s
results of operations or financial position.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. APB 14-1, Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon
Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement). This FSP provides guidance on the accounting for certain tyfpes of convertible
debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion. Additionally, this FSP specifies that issuers of such instruments
should separately account for the liability and equity components in a manner that will reflect the entity’s nonconvertible debt
borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in subsequent periods. The FSP is effective for financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of this FSP is not
expected to have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

In June 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. EITF 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment
Transactions Are Farticipating Securities, to clarify that instruments (frantcd in share-based payment transactions can be
Earticipating securities prior to the requisite service having been rendered. A basic principle of the FSP is that unvested share-

ased payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are
participating securities and are to be included in the computation of EPS pursuant to the two-class method. The provisions of this
FSP are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within
those years. All prior-period EPS data presented (including interim financial statements, summaries of earnings, and selected
financial data) are required to be adjusted retrospectively to conform with the provisions of the FSP. The adoption of this FSP is
not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 132(R)-1, Emplovers’ Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assels.
This FSP amends FASB Statement No. 132 (revised 2003), Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement
Benefits, to improve an employer’s disclosures about plan assets of a defined benefit pension or other postretirement plan. The
disclosures about plan assets required by the FSP are to be provided for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2009. The adoption
of this FSP is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

NOTE 2 - PER SHARE DATA

There are no convertible securities which would affect the denominator in calculating basic and dilutive earnings per share;
therefore, net income as presem_ed on the consolidated statement of income will be psed as th_e numerator. The following table sets
forth the composition of the weighted average common shares (denominator) used in the basic and dilutive per share computation.

2008 2007 2006

Weighted average common shares outstanding. . . ........... 4,008,553 4,005,181 4,002,416
Weighted average treasury stock shares . .................. (148,829) (118,904) (68.278)
Weighted average common shares and common stock

equivalents used to calculate basic earnings per share. ...  3.859.724 3,886,277 3,934,138
Additional common stock equivalents (stock options)

used to calculate diluted earnings per share............ 109 237 479
Weighted average common shares and common stock

equivalents used to calculate diluted earnings per share. .. 3859833 3.886.514 3,934,617

Options to purchase 1,980, 10,913, and 11,972 shares of common stock at a range in price of $24.72 to $40.29 were outstanding
at December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. The options were included in the computation of diluted earnings per share
on a weighted average basis determined by the length of time during each period that the market value exceeded the strike price.



NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of investment securities at December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

(In Thousands) 2008
Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for sale (AFS)
U.S. Government and agency securities .. .......... $ 46,452 § 1,134 § — 3 47,586
State and political securities. .................... 142,258 348 (10,764) 131,842
Other debt SecuTTties < vsnwnin svsanirasin wisEmis 15.970 649 (1.065) 15.554
Total debt securities . .. ........cvvieininennn.. 204,680 2,131 (11,829) 194,982
Equity Securities . . ... ey 16,429 225 (3,385) 13.269
Total investment securitiess AFS ... ................. b 221.109 § 2356 $ (15.214) $ 208.251
Held to maturity (HTM)
U.S. Government and agency securities . . .......... $ 10 % } 3 $ 11
Other debt securities . . ... .o vviivvennninennnn 125 — — 125
Total investment securities HTM . . ................. $ 135 -8 L 3 — 136
(In Thousands) 2007
Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for sale (AFS)
U.S. Government and agency securities . . .......... $ 62382 §$ 522 % — 3 62,904
State and political securities . . ......... ...t 119,651 581 (2,417) 117,815
Other debt securities . .. .........c.ouuineeennnn.. 15917 290 (440) 15,767
Total debt securities. . ... ccoovivivn cnivnvivies 197.950 1,393 (2,857) 196,486
BQuity SECUTHES « ovsvaninnn wammsssannn fmm ismamian 19,776 496 (2,303) 17,969
Total investment securities AFS . . .. .. ............. $ 217,726 % 1,889 § (5,160) S 214,455
Held to maturity (HTM)
U.S. Government and agency securities . ........... $ 14 8 S — 3 15
Other debt securities . .. .....ovt i 263 1 — 264
Total investment securities HTM .. ................. 3 277 § 2 .5 — 8 279

The following tables show the Company’s gross unrealized losses and estimated fair value, aggregated by investment category and
length of time, that the individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2008 and 2007.

(In Thousands) 2008
Less than twelve months Twelve months or greater Total
Estimated Gross Estimated Gross Estimated Gross
Fair LUnrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Valne Losses
U.S. Government and agency securities . ............... S = B S 5 $ 5
State and political securities ............ ..o iiiia 43,388 4,378 67.412 6.386 115,800 10,764
Other bt SECURTIEE oo mrss s s b mstasevm s 6,341 451 2012 614 8.353 1,063
Total debt securities . .. ......covririninennnnnnn.. 54,729 4,829 69,424 7.000 124,153 11,829
BOuiby SEOUTIEIES" s vmie snins wamins i St sni S1EEan 164 80 5.364 3,305 5,528 3.385
T e Ty o ey S 54893 § 4909 § 74,788 § 10,305 § 120681 § 15,214
(In Thousands) 2007
Less than twelve months Twelve months or greater Total
Estimated Gross Estimated Gross Estimated Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government and agency securities . ............... S — $ — 5 — 393 — 8 —3 .
State and political securities ... ......... ... .. ... ..., 60,002 1,705 21,830 712 81,832 2417
Other debt secirities: c o snmmmmmr i mirn S 2,521 357 388 83 2.909 440
TOtal AEBE SECUITEIBE. .- v 51w amimmm s e sim o ek o T 62,523 2,062 22218 795 84,741 2,857
UV SERUBHIRS .o .55 v 05055 S 0,08 B b 0 7 8,200 1,837 996 466 9,196 2303
TFOERE s o a R oA N T R B B PR R b $ 70,723 $ 3,899 § 23,214 % 1.261 § 93937 § 5.160




At December 31, 2008 there were a total of 95 and 184 individual securities that were in a continuous unrealized loss position
for less than twelve months and greater than twelve months, respectively.

The Company reviews its position quarterly and has asserted that at December 31, 2008, the declines outlined in the above table
represent temporary declines and the Company does have the intent and ability either to hold those securities to maturity or to
allow a market recovery. There were 279 positions that were temporarily impaired at December 31, 2008. The Company has
concluded that the unrealized losses disclosed above are not other than temporary but are the result of interest rate changes,
sector credit ratings changes, or Company-specific ratings changes that are not expected to result in the non-collection of
principal and interest during the period.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2008, by contractual maturity, are shown below.
Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities since borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with
or without call or prepayment penalties.

(In Thousands) Available for Sale Held to Maturity
Amortized Estimated Fair Amortized Estimated Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Dueinoneyearorless .............ccovuvn... $ — 3 — 25 $ 25
Due after one year to five years ............... 75 75 100 100
Due after five yearstotenyears . .............. 418 445
Diae-after ten Years e v sins saveismng sas eam 204,187 194,462 10 L1
TOta) e wimemriraassmn comsmrement e s 3 204.680 $ 194982 § 135 § 136

Total gross proceeds from sales of securities available for sale were $40,169.000, $60,485,000, and $76,249,000 for 2008, 2007,
and 2006, respectively. The following table represents gross realized gains and losses on those transactions:

{In"Thousands) 2008 2007 2006
Gross realized gains:
U.S. Government and agency securities. . ..........vveennn... $ 29 5 68 § —
State and political Seenrities. . .. v swswmnmmes v ssmms 236 840 1,248
Other debt securities. ... ...........ioiin i . 6 2 —
Bquity SECUrities : civormma wen damriimsng Seimea Bas e G 539 772 1,655
Total grossrealized-gaiNs. s moveinsves s uasmn $ 1,034 § 1,682 $ 2,903
Gross realized losses:
U.S. Government and agency securities. . .................... $ 36 §$ 902 § 913
State and political securities. . . .......... ...t 204 e 302
Other debt seCUrties. . ... .. .vurtt e 510 — —
Bquity SECUIIHES 4-sasiviia i S o miiny vaynemaie vie s 2315 834 9
Total gross realized TOSSES o voumswnmmi Fomme i st wsd s $ 3065 § 1,736 § 1,224

Gross realized losses for the equity securities portfolio include impairment charges of $2,797,000 and $834,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Investment securities with a carrying value of approximately $102,362,000 and $97,647,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively, were pledged to secure certain deposits, repurchase agreements, and for other purposes as required by law.

There is no concentration of investments that exceed ten percent of shareholders’ equity for any individual issuer, excluding those
guaranteed by the U.S. Government.

NOTE 4 - LOANS

Major loan classifications as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows:

(In Thousands) 2008
Past Due
90 Days
Past due or more
30 to 90 & still Non-
Current Days Accruing Accrual Total
Commercial and agricultural. . ........ S 40,006 S 7 3 — 79 S 40,602
Real estate mortgage:
Residential .. covansemvnn e 170,011 6.582 223 590 177.406
Commercial . .................. 134,647 775 — 736 136,158
Construction. . ................. 13,652 167 - 19 15,838
Installment loans to individuals ....... 12,053 346 36 52 12.487
372369 S 8387 § 29 ' § 1.476 382491
Less: Net deferred loan fees 1,013 1,013
Allowance for loan losses 4,356 4.356
Loans, net S 367.000 § 377.122

et e e



(In Thousands) 2007

Past Due
90 Days
Past due or more
30 to 90 & still Non-
Current Days Accruing Accrual Total
Commercial and agricultural. . ... ..... $ 35316 8§ 236§ 147 § 40 S 35,739
Real estate mortgage:
Residential o onny somsmogsas i 158.424 4,573 110 161 163.268
Commercial ................... 130.692 1,409 88 754 132,943
Construction. . . ................ 16,113 39 — - 16,152
Installment loans to individuals ....... 12,838 459 20 — 13,317
353383 §% 6,716 $ 365 § 955 361,419
Less: Net deferred loan fees 941 941
Allowance for loan losses 4,130 4,130
Loans, net $ 348,312 $ 356,348

Impaired loans totaled $5,042,000 and $1,477.000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The portion of the allowance for
loan losses allocated for impaired loans was $166,000 and $102,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The average
recorded investment in impaired loans during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was approximately $3.410,000 and
$1,130,000, respectively.

The Company recognized interest income on impaired loans in the amount of $123,000 and $42,000 for the years ended December
31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. On a cash basis, interest income on impaired loans amounted to $7.000 and $29.000 for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

No additional funds are committed to be advanced in connection with impaired loans.

Loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued or reduced, exclusive of impaired loans, amounted to approximately
$1,476,000 and $955,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. If interest had been recorded based on the original loan
agreement terms and rate of interest for those loans, income would have approximated $72,000, $87,000, and $23,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. Interest income on such loans, is recorded as received and amounted to
approximately $9,000, $17,000, and $15,000 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 are as follows:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006
Balance, Peginning 0f YEar:; s s eonins (e e il ans s jia e S 4130 $ 4185 $ 3,679
Provision charged to operations . ...............c.iiiiiniineiin.. 375 150 635
Loans charged off . ... .. ... . .. . (313) (304) (327)
RECOVEIIES & . vt vttt e e e et e et e e e e et e e e e s 164 99 198
Balance,end of year . ...ttt S 4356 $ 4,130 % 4,185

The Company has a concentration of loans to both owners of commercial and residential rental properties at December 31, 2008
and 2007 of 15.07% and 14.43% and 14.67% and 14.56% of total loans, respectively.

The Company grants commercial, industrial, residential, and installment loans to customers throughout north-central Pennsylvania.
Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio at December 31, 2008 and 2007, a substantial portion of its debtors’ ability
to honor their contracts is dependent on the economic conditions within this region.

NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Major classifications of premises and equipment are summarized as follows at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007
LA s oos anmnrans s, Wi Sauemam o Sainieai eI SR S 1,480 $ 1,391
PEMISER « ¢ wpvinmomoimn simwasme il o i ssse K aiaviases s naviasie i W sl fe o 6,929 6,218
T I AT B OIS oo cmicmins) omp vt nmgies st 0 RSB A ST SMN RN TV 6,067 5,356
Leasehold improvements . . ... .. ...ttt e e 871 815
Total siennueaiinn oy svaeims S DB S LTy SR SRS 15,347 13,780
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ... ... ... ... ... . i 7.482 7.006
Net premises and eqUIPMENT . . ... oottt ettt e e et a e et S 7,865 $ 6,774

Depreciation and amortization charged to operations for the years ended 2008, 2007, and 2006 was $663,000, $680,000, and
$744.,000, respectively.




NOTE 6 - GOODWILL

As of December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 goodwill had a gross carrying value of $3.308.000 and accumulated amortization of

$276,000 resulting in a net carrying amount of $3,032,000.

The gross carrying amount of goodwill is tested for impairment in the third quarter of each fiscal year. Based on fair value of the
reporting unit, estimated using the expected present value of future cash flows, there was no evidence of impairment of the

carrying amount at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

NOTE 7 - TIME DEPOSITS

Time deposits of $100,000 or more totaled approximately $67,356,000 on December 31, 2008 and $59.424,000 on December 31,
2007. Interest expense related to such deposits was approximately $2,894.000, $3,216,000, and $1,873,000, for the years ended

December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

At December 31, 2008, the scheduled maturities on time deposits of $100,000 or more are as follows:

(In Thousands) 2008
Threemonths orless .. ...t b 23,520
Three monthstosixmonths .........coviiiinineennn. 12,785
Six months totwelvemonths. . ...............cvvvvnn.. 19.261
Overtwelvemonths. .. ... ... e 11.790
Total s ssvananim: sivenys n vnveinm s5s oriiivve i $ 67.356

Total time deposit maturities are as follows at December 31, 2008:

(In Thousands) 2008
0L N S, S, SO S S S 158,473
DOTO s, crcrmiusmsina iz spwmssism DR st AR, oo SRS 0 22,199
20T ] e e 11,714
L T e AR T e I W G I W e e T 3,212
BOED srscsrarmmiiaiorn aramas SIS AT S N A 1 620
Thereafter. . . ... . 778
TR 5 sivminians Sl diaas shrarseisn s e i S 196,996

NOTE 8 - SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings consist of securities sold under agreements to repurchase and primarily Federal Home Loan Bank
(“FHLB”) advances which generally represent overnight or less than six month borrowings. In addition to the outstanding balances
noted below, the Bank also had additional lines of credit totaling $13,845,000 available from correspondent banks other than the
FHLB. The outstanding balances and related information for short-term borrowings are summarized as follows at December 31,

2008, 2007, and 2006:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006
Repurchase Agreements:
Balance st yeatent. .. .. cruun msmiemmmeiees smmmscasromnsn s msmm wnts 5 12,933 17,155 § 15,991
Maximum amount outstanding at any monthend. . . ................ 18,839 19,058 19,916
Average balance outstanding during the year. . .................... 15,840 16,746 16,028
Weighted-average interest rate:
ATVOAFIONM. oo cvsninnsints mme s aneiiin, S siisin A sTsmtaise 5 o 2.83% 3.37% 3.96%
Paid during the VoA comms aemsmsason wnmesisimiam s wes e see i 2.83% 3.69% 3.55%
Open Repo Plus:
BalatGe Bt RO cum i ook @i 5 R R A $ 61.013 38,160 $ 18,706
Maximum amount outstanding at any monthend. . ................. 61.013 38,895 43,040
Average balance outstanding during the year . . .................... 31.495 19,299 15,301
Weighted-average interest rate:
AL VEaT N oy sty i e SRR TR S e Y 0.59% 4.32% 5.40%
Paid during the Year- < un sosmamien me bt S5 o i | 2.04% 5.09% 5.07%
Short-Term FHLB:
Balance at year 8N« svmamanss wasimmietnm e wmesis su . $ — 3 —
Maximum amount outstanding at any monthend. . ................. 10,000 15,000 —
Average balance outstanding during the year .. .................... 3,210 771 3,283
Weighted-average interest rate:
Atyear end . ... e — —
Paid dufing the-year s ¢sn Gasinaisin fahanions 5 sveeisn, i53 2.58% 5.06% 4.82%



NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

The following represents outstanding long-term borrowings with the FHLB by contractual maturities at December 31, 2008 and
2007:

(In Thousands) Weighted- Weighted- Stated Interest
Average Interest Average Interest Rate Range
Description Maturity Rate 2008 Rate 2007 From To 2008 2007
Variable 2008 — 4.77% 3.14% 5.56% $ — $ 29,600
Variable 2010 4.87% 4.87% 3.98% 6.65% 15,000 15,000
Variable 2011 4.49% 4.49% 4.25% 4.72% 10,000 10,000
Variable 2012 4.18% 4.18% 3.68% 4.43% 15,000 15,000
Variable 2013 3.74% 3.74% 3.74% 3.74% 5,000 5,000
Variable 2015 3.97% 3.97% 3.97% 3.97% 10,000 10,000
Variable 2017 4.22% 4.22% 4.15% 4.28% 20,000 20,000
Variable 2018 3.18% — 3.18% 3.18% 10,000 —
Total Variable 4.18% 4.44% 85,000 104,600
Fixed 2011 6.92% 6.92% 6.92% 6.92% 500 500
Fixed 2013 5.87% 5.87% 5.87% 5.87% 528 528
Fixed 2015 6.92% 6.92% 6.92% 6.92% 750 750
Total Fixed 6.61% 6.61% 1,778 1,778
Total 4.23% 4.48% $ 86,778 $ 106,378
(In Thousands)
Year ending Weighted-
December 31, Amount Average Rate
2009 $ — —
2010 15,000 4.87%
2011 10,500 4.60%
2012 15,000 4.18%
2013 and after 46,278 3.95%
$ 86,778 4.23%

The terms of the convertible borrowings allow the FHLB to convert the interest rate to an adjustable rate based on the three month
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) at a predetermined anniversary date of the borrowing’s origination, ranging from three
months to five years. If the FHLB converts the interest rate on one of the predetermined dates, the Bank has the ability to payoff
the debt on the conversion date and quarterly thereafter without incurring the customary pre-payment penalty.

The Bank maintains a credit arrangement which includes a revolving line of credit with the FHLB. Under this credit arrangement,
the Bank has a remaining borrowing capacity of $66,048,000 at December 31, 2008, which is subject to annual renewal, and
typically incurs no service charges. Under terms of a blanket agreement, collateral for the FHLB borrowings must be secured by
certain qualifying assets of the Bank which consist principally of first mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities.

NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES

The following temporary differences gave rise to the net deferred tax asset position at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007
Deferred tax asset:
Allowance for 10an L0SSES. . . .. vttt e e $ 1481  $ 1,404
Deferred compensation. . . .. .. oottt e 402 408
PenSION . . .. 2,014 870
Loan fees and coStS ... ... ... ... . 344 320
Investment securities allowance . .. ......... ... ... . .. ... 548 278
Unrealized loss on available for sale securities ... .......... . .. 4,372 1,112
Low income housing credit carryforward .. ........ ... ... .. .. i 1,571 827
Capital 10SS . . o e 503 —
O heT . .o e 373 212
Total. . o 11,608 5,431
Deferred tax liabilities:
Bond accretion . .. ... ... 61 44
Depreciation . .. . ..o 141 117
AMOTHZALION. . . . .ot e e e 526 451
Total. ... 728 612

Deferred tax asset, et . . .. oottt ettt e e $ 10,880 $ 4,819




No valuation allowance was established at December 31, 2008 and 2007, in view of the Company’s ability to carry back capital
losses to recover taxes paid in previous years and certain tax strategies, together with the anticipated future taxable income as
evidenced by the Company’s earning potential.

The provision for income taxes is comprised of the following for the year ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Currentlypayable: corsmnsiss 1unerne s R easn sl oS | $ 1,967 §$ 1,758  § 2,112

Beferred benefit:: cuavnainen soisem i (e S B UnEs R (1.562) (1,121) (151)
Total ProvASION e sasmammmmn, oo nemaiieg o s emees $ 405 $ 637 $ 1,961

A reconciliation between the expected income tax and the effective income tax rate on income before income tax provision follows
for the year ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006
Amount Yo Amount % Amount %o
Provision at expected rate. . .. .. $ 2859 34.0% $ 3235  34.0% S 3947 34.0%
Decrease in tax resulting from:
Tax-exempt income ... ... (1,757) (20.9) (1,512) (15.9) (1,425) (12.3)
TAREEEiS cosronmone e (601) (7.2) (1,048) (11.0) (363) (3.1)
Other,met .....co0vvess (96)  (1.1) (38)  (0.4) (198)  (1.7)
Effective income tax..........
andrate................ $ 405 4.8% $ 637 6.7% § 1,961 16.9%

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan”™) for all employees meeting certain age and length of
service requirements that were hired prior to January 1, 2004, at which time entrance into the Plan was frozen. Benefits are based
primarily on years of service and the average annual compensation during the highest five consecutive years within the final ten
years of employment.

The following table sets forth the obligation and funded status as of December 31, 2008 and 2007:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year. .. ....................... 5 10,450 § 8.510
SEIVICE GO iy ARt HR RS, W SR 546 466
INEETESE COSE .« . o vt vttt et ettt e e et e e e e e 609 486
Actuarial (gain) 1088 <ovsnsevms avemmosis SRveaTE LusE R (166) 80
BefBfitS PAT. . vossiiwmmiimeim aammsisasin. Sams e SETREa s (210) (210)
Other, change in actuarial assumptions. . ...........oouiunenn.u 758 1,118
Bénefit obligation: at €id 6FVERE s wovommeine susemsnms s 11.987 10,450

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year .. ................... 7,891 6.990
Actual loss on planaSsets . ves wovammmsias mumeims v s sese e (2,504) 531
Employer contribution . .. ...t 875 580
Benefits paid ..y sonmmipans wosmsnamia Soee i, s (210) (210)
Adjustment to fair value of planassets . .. ....................... 13 —
Fair value of plan assetsatendofyear . ..................ooiut. 6,065 7.891
Funded Statis . . . ..ot ee e e e ot e e e e e e e e e e $ (5,922) $ (2,559)

Accounts recognized on balance sheet as:
Total iabilities s nsn i ovcenes, ive SESie i ook ssvanss Sos avieiis S (5.922) $§ (2.559)

Amounts not yet recognized as a component of net periodic pension cost:
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) consist of:

NEEITANSIHON A88BE o worinmms i e s masts SRR e o R A $ (9) $§ (12)
Prior SEIVICE COSE . . o vttt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 127 153
Neblosgnmrors s svmvem s s S ese s PRI, S e 5,609 1,942

TOtal. « e e 5 ST 5 2,083




The accumulated benefit obligation for the Plan was $9,410,000 and $7,835,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Components of Net Periodic Cost and Other Amounts Recognized in other Comprehensive Income as of December 31, 2008, 2007,
and 2006 are as follows:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Net periodic pension cost:

SCIVICE COBL .+ v vttt et et e e e e e e e e e e 8 546 $ 467 $ 467

Tterest Gosta mon wmompmms i, S EE R RN SR S R AT ARG B 609 486 434

Expected return on plan assets . .. ...t (641) (562) (485)
Amortization of transition asset . ... .. ..ottt i e (3) 3) (3)
Amortization of prior Service Cost . ........ovvieiriri it 25 26 26

Amortization of unrecognized netloss. . .......... ... ... .. .. ... 57 22

Mt PErGAE DN GOt  .on s mmmminm s sramsiin o ST e ) 593 5 414 3 461

The estimated net transition asset and prior service cost for the defined benefit pension plan that will be amortized from
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $3,000 and $25,000,
respectively.

Assumptions
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006:

2008 2007 2006
B)TeTo1Y) ¢ B o | 1O USSR ;- . . 6.00% 5.75%
Rate of compensation INCIease ciume iun Seemie s seiiondy i s 2 4.75% 5.00% 4.75%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic cost for years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006:

2008 2007 2006
DHSCORHETATE w ucmnimag s e 50 SRR e, SRR S 6.00% 5.75% 5.50%
Expected long-term return on plan assets . ...........uiiiiiiieneneinaa.s 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of coMpensation INCIASE < v/ viws fuwimiee s Svviseen vasseave o 5.00% 4.75% 4.50%

The expected long-term rate of return was estimated using market benchmarks by which the plan assets would outperform the
market value in the future, based on historical experience adjusted for changes in asset allocation and expectations for overall lower
future returns on similar investments compared to past periods.

Plan Assets

The Plan’s weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2008 and 2007 by asset category are as follows:

Asset Category 2008 2007
L L e 0.3% 0.2%
Fixed INCOME SEOUTTHES . . v oo v ot ses svineeins oes ainiessas o sne o sson oo sssesaesnss 39.2% 39.6%
BQUILY s sovammsmasn sy sim sommiain i 6 uriimnme v siemmsmimmets seiirsonis s 60.5% 60.2%
TOtal . ot e e 100.0% 100.0%

The investment objective for the Plan is to maximize total return with tolerance for slightly above average risk, meaning the fund
is able to tolerate short-term volatility to achieve above-average returns over the long term.

Asset allocation favors equities, with target allocation of approximately 60% equity securities, 37.5% fixed income securities and
2.5% cash. Due to volatility in the market, the target allocation is not always desirable and asset allocations will fluctuate between
the acceptable ranges. The equity portfolio’s exposure is primarily in mid and large capitalization domestic equities with limited
exposure to small capitalization and international stocks.

It is management’s intent to give the investment managers flexibility, within the overall guidelines, with respect to investment
decisions and their timing. However, certain investments require specific review and approval by management. Management is
also informed of anticipated, significant modifications of any previously approved investment, or anticipated use of derivatives to
execute investment strategies.

The following benefit payments that reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:
Estimated future benefit payments:

(In Thousands) 2009 $ 309
IV i e 5 i s 330

» 1y | R CRSOS 0SS BO IS 357

p 1 1) b T SEW e 528

M. s ey e e 555

(1] s 1) R N D00 PR P 3,278

$ 5357

The company expects to contribute a minimum of $325,000 to its Pension Plan in 2009.




401(k) Savings Plan

The Company also offers a 401(k) savings plan in which eligible participating employees may elect to contribute up to a maximum
percentage allowable not to exceed the limits of Code Sections 401(k), 404, and 415. The Company may make matching
contributions equal to a discretionary percentage that is determined by the Board of Directors. Participants are at all times fully
vested in their contributions and vest over a period of five years regarding the employer contribution. Contribution expense was
approximately $97,000, $97.000, and $96,000 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has a deferred compensation plan whereby participating directors elect to forego directors’ fees paid in cash. Under
this plan, the Company will make payments for a ten-year period beginning at age 65 in most cases or at death, if earlier, at which
time payments would be made to their designated beneficiaries.

To fund benefits under the deferred compensation plan, the Company has acquired bank-owned life insurance policies on the lives
of the participating directors for which insurance benefits are payable to the Company. The Company incurred expenses related
to the plan of $96,000, $85,000, and $69,000 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. Benefits paid
under the plan were approximately $180,000, $125,000, and $122,000 in 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Effective April 26, 2006, the Company implemented the Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“Plan”™).
The Plan is intended to encourage employee participation in the ownership and economic progress of the Company. The Plan
allows for up to 1,000,000 shares to be purchased by employees. The purchase price of the shares is 95% of market value with an
employee eligible to purchase up to the lesser of 15% of base compensation or $12,000 in market value annually. There were 3,264
and 3,090 shares issued under the plan for the years ended December 31. 2008 and 2007, respectively.

NOTE 13 - STOCK OPTIONS

In 1998, the Company adopted the 1998 Stock Option Plan (*1998 Plan”) for key employees and directors. Incentive stock options
and nonqualified stock options may be granted to eligible employees of the Bank and nonqualified options may be granted to
directors of the Company. Incentive nonqualified stock options granted under the 1998 Plan may be exercised not later than ten
years after the date of grant. Each option granted under the 1998 Plan shall be exercisable only after the expiration of six months
following the date of grant of such options.

A summary of the status of the Company’s common stock option plans are presented below:

2008 2007
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding, beginning of year. .. ... 10913 § 37.60 11,972 § 3741
Granted .. .........ooiiin... — — — —
Bxereised i vosns s s (330) 31.82 (330) 24.72
Forfeited ............ .. ......... (8.603) 39.97 (729) 40.29
Outstanding, end of year........... 1.980 § 28.27 10913  § 37.60
Options exercisable at year-end. . . . .. 1,980 § 28.27 10913 § 37.60

The following table summarizes information about nonqualified and incentive stock options outstanding at December 31, 2008:

Outstanding Exercisable
Average Average
Average Exercise Exercise
Exercise Price Shares Life Price Shares Price
$ 31.82 990 1 § NN 990 $ 31.82
24.72 990 2 24.72 990 24.72

NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain directors and executive officers of the Company and the Bank, including their immediate families and companies in which
they are principal owners (more than ten percent), are indebted to the Company. Such indebtedness was incurred in the ordinary
course of business on the same terms and at those rates prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with others.

A summary of loan activity with executive officers, directors, principal shareholders, and associates of such persons is listed below
for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007:

. Beginning Other Ending

(i Thousands) Balance Additions Payments Changes Balance
2008 $ 9,335 $ 1,626 § 1,776 $ 243 § 8,942
2007 9,742 1,711 2,118 s 9,335

Deposits from related parties held by the Bank amounted to $7,377,000 at December 31, 2008 and $7,796,000 at December 31,
2007.



NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The following schedule shows future minimum rental payments under operating leases with noncancellable terms in excess of one
year as of December 31, 2008:

(In Thousands)

2000 . e $ 387
2000 383
200 o 317
2002 e 296
2003 227
Thereafter . . ... ... ... . . . . ... 1,703

Total .. ..o $ 3,313

The Company’s operating lease obligations represent short and long-term lease and rental payments for facilities. Total rental expense
for all operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $406,000, $423,000, and $380,000.

The Company is subject to lawsuits and claims arising out of its business. There are no such legal proceedings or claims currently
pending or threatened other than those encountered during the normal course of business.

NOTE 16 - OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing
needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit, interest rate, or liquidity risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet. The contract amounts of these instruments express the extent of involvement the Company has in
particular classes of financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss from nonperformance by the other party to the financial instruments for commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of these instruments. The Company uses the same
credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. The Company may
require collateral or other security to support financial instruments with off-balance sheet credit risk.

Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk are as follows at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007
Commitments to extend credit. .. .......... . ... . .. . ... ... . ... $ 85,871 §$ 74,349
Standby letters of credit . .. ........ ... .. .. 841 974

Commitments to extend credit are legally binding agreements to lend to customers. Commitments generally have fixed expiration
dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of fees. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future liquidity requirements. The Company evaluates
each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company,
on an extension of credit is based on management’s credit assessment of the counterparty.

Standby letters of credit represent conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer to a
third party. These instruments are issued primarily to support bid or performance related contracts. The coverage period for these
instruments is typically a one year period with an annual renewal option subject to prior approval by management. Fees earned from
the issuance of these letters are recognized upon expiration of the coverage period. For secured letters of credit, the collateral is
typically Bank deposit instruments or customer business assets.

NOTE 17 - CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Federal regulations require the Company and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts of capital. Specifically, each is required to
maintain certain minimum dollar amounts and ratios of Total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets and of Tier 1 capital to average
total assets.

In addition to the capital requirements, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act (“FDICIA”) established five
capital categories ranging from “well capitalized” to “critically undercapitalized””  Should any institution fail to meet the
requirements to be considered “adequately capitalized,” it would become subject to a series of increasingly restrictive regulatory
actions.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) categorized the Bank as well capitalized
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be classified as a well capitalized financial institution, Total risk-
based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage capital ratios must be at least 10%, 6%, and 5%, respectively.




The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital ratios are presented in the following tables, which shows that both met all regulatory
capital requirements.

Consolidated Company

(In Thousands) 2008 2007
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total Capital
(to Risk-weighted Assets)

Actual $ 66,891 16.0% $ 70,381 18.0%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 33,410 8.0 31,280 8.0
To Be Well Capitalized 41,763 10.0 39,100 10.0

Tier 1 Capital
(to Risk-weighted Assets)

Actual $ 62,540 15.0% $ 66,251 16.9%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 16,705 4.0 15,640 4.0
To Be Well Capitalized 25,058 6.0 23,460 6.0
Tier 1 Capital

(to Average Assets)
Actual $ 62,540 9.7% $ 66,251 10.8%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 25,773 4.0 24,664 4.0
To Be Well Capitalized 32,216 5.0 30,830 5.0

Bank
(In Thousands) 2008 2007
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total Capital

(to Risk-weighted Assets)
Actual $ 56,876 13.9% $ 57,295 15.1%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 32,799 8.0 30,350 8.0
To Be Well Capitalized 40,998 10,0 37.938 10.0
Tier 1 Capital

(to Risk-weighted Assets)
Actual $ 52,520 12.8% $ 53,165 14.0%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 16,399 4.0 15,175 4.0
To Be Well Capitalized 24,599 6.0 22,763 6.0
Tier 1 Capital

(to Average Assets)
Actual $ 52,520 8.3% $ 53,165 8.8%
For Capital Adequacy Purposes 25423 4.0 24,124 4.0
To Be Well Capitalized 31,77 5.0 30,155 5.0

NOTE 18 - REGULATORY RESTRICTIONS

The Pennsylvania Banking Code restricts the availability of capital funds for payment of dividends by all state-chartered banks to
the additional paid in capital of the Bank. Accordingly, at December 31, 2008, the balance in the additional paid in capital account
totaling S$11,657,000 is unavailable for dividends.

The Bank is subject to regulatory restrictions, which limit its ability to loan funds to Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. At December 31,
2008, the regulatory lending limit amounted to approximately $8,531.000.

Cash and Due from Banks

Included in cash and due from banks are reserves required by the district Federal Reserve Bank of $1,046,000 and $1,009,000 at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The required reserves are computed by applying prescribed ratios to the classes of
average deposit balances. These are held in the form of cash on hand and a balance maintained directly with the Federal Reserve
Bank.

NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, for financial assets and
financial liabilities. FAS No. 157 provides enhanced guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. The standard
applies whenever other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value. The standard does not expand
the use of fair value in any new circumstances. The FASB issued Staff Position No. 157-1, Application of FASB Statement No.
157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of
Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13, which removed leasing transactions accounted for under FAS No. 13
and related guidance from the scope of FAS No. 157. The FASB also issued Staff Position No.157-2, Partial Deferral of the
Effective Date of Statement 157, which deferred the effective date of FAS No. 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial
liabilities to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008.



FAS No. 157 establishes a hierarchal disclosure framework associated with the level of pricing observability utilized in measuring
assets and liabilities at fair value. The three broad levels defined by FAS No. 157 hierarchy are as follows:

Level I: Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reported date.

Level II: Pricing inputs are other than the quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of
the reported date. The nature of these assets and liabilities includes items for which quoted prices are available but traded less
frequently and items that are fair-valued using other financial instruments, the parameters of which can be directly observed.

Level I1I: Assets and liabilities that have little to no pricing observability as of the reported date. These items do not have two-way
markets and are measured using management’s best estimate of fair value, where the inputs into the determination of fair value
require significant management judgment or estimation.

The following table presents the assets reported on the balance sheet at their fair value as of December 31, 2008, by level within
the fair value hierarchy. As required by FAS No. 157, financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

(In Thousands) December 31, 2008

Level 1 Level 11 Level 111 Total
Assets:
Investment securities, available forsale. .. ............. $ 13,269 $ 194982 § — S 208,251

NOTE 20 - ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is required to disclose estimated fair values for its financial instruments. Fair value estimates are made at a specific
point in time, based on relevant market information and information about the financial instrument. These estimates do not reflect
any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time the Company’s entire holdings of a particular financial
instrument. Also, it is the Company’s general practice and intention to hold most of its financial instruments to maturity and not
to engage in trading or sales activities. Because no market exists for a significant portion of the Company’s financial instruments,
fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk
characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions can
significantly affect the estimates.

Estimated fair values have been determined by the Company using historical data and an estimation methodology suitable for each
category of financial instruments. The Company’s fair value estimates, methods, and assumptions are set forth below for the
Company’s other financial instruments.

As certain assets and liabilities, such as deferred tax assets, premises and equipment, and many other operational elements of the
Company, are not considered financial instruments but have value, this estimated fair value of financial instruments would not
represent the full market value of the Company.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows at December 31, 2008 and 2007:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. . ........... $ 16,581 $§ 16,581 S 15433 § 15,433
Investment securities:
Available forsale .................. 208,251 208,251 214,455 214,455
Held to maturity. .. ................ 135 136 277 279
Loans held forsale .................. 3,622 3,622 4,214 4,214
Loans,net ......................... 377,122 380,771 356,348 357,628
Bank-owned life insurance . ........... 14,546 14,546 12,375 12,375
Accrued interest receivable. . ... ... .... 3,614 3,614 3,343 3,343
Financial liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposits . ............. S 345,333 § 347,657 $ 314,351 $ 314,501
Noninterest-bearing deposits. .......... 76,035 76,035 74,671 74,671
Short-term borrowings ............... 73,946 73,946 55,315 55,315
Long-term borrowings, FHLB ......... 86,778 88,188 106,378 106,154

Accrued interest payable.............. 1,317 1,317 1,744 1,744




Cash and Cash Equivalents, L.oans Held for Sale, Accrued Interest Receivable, Short-term Borrowings, and Accrued
Interest Payable:
The fair value is equal to the carrying value.

Investment Securities:

The fair value of investment securities available for sale and held to maturity is equal to the available quoted market price. If no
quoted market price is available, fair value is estimated using the quoted market price for similar securities. Regulatory stocks’
fair value is equal to the carrying value.

Loans:

Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans with similar financial characteristics. Loans are segregated by type such as
commercial, commercial real estate, residential real estate, construction real estate, and other consumer. Each loan category is
further segmented into fixed and adjustable rate interest terms and by performing and nonperforming categories.

The fair value of performing loans is calculated by discounting scheduled cash flows through the estimated maturity using
estimated market discount rates that reflect the credit and interest rate risk inherent in the loan. The estimate of maturity is based
on the Company’s historical experience with repayments for each loan classification, modified, as required, by an estimate of the
effect of current economic and lending conditions.

Fair value for significant nonperforming loans is based on recent external appraisals. If appraisals are not available, estimated cash
flows are discounted using a rate commensurate with the risk associated with the estimated cash flows. Assumptions regarding
credit risk, cash flows, and discounted rates are judgmentally determined using available market information and specific borrower
information.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance:
The fair value is equal to the cash surrender value of the life insurance policies.

Deposits:
The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as noninterest-bearing demand deposits, savings, NOW, and money market

accounts, is equal to the amount payable on demand as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. The fair value of certificates of deposit
is based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows.

The fair value estimates above do not include the benefit that results from the low-cost funding provided by the deposit liabilities
compared to the cost of borrowing funds in the market, commonly referred to as the core deposit intangible.

Long Term Borrowings:
The fair value of long term borrowings is based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows.

ommitments to Extend Credit, Standby Letters of Credit, and Financial Guarantees Written:
There is no material difference between the notional amount and the estimated fair value of off-balance sheet items at December
31, 2008 and 2007. The contractual amounts of unfunded commitments and letters of credit are presented in Note 16.



NOTE 21 - PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed financial information for Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. follows:
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET, DECEMBER 31,

(In Thousands) 2008 2007
ASSETS:
Cash . ... $ 9 8 15
Investment in subsidiaries:
Bank . ... 49,327 56,971
Nonbank . ... ... 11,463 13,473
Other asSetS . oo v it e 225 234
TOtal ASSELS . o v v v et e e e $ 61,109 $ 70,693
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Other Habilities. . ... ...t e e $ 82 3 134
Shareholders’ equity. . ... ... ... 61,027 70,559
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . .................... $ 61,109 §$ 70,693
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006
Operating income:
Dividends from subsidiaries. . . .......... ... ... . L $ 8,763  § 8,039 9,890
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries................. (485) 1,152 53
OPerating EXPENSES . . . . v vttt e ettt e e (275) (314) (296)
NetinCome . . . ... $ 8,003 § 8,877 9,647
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NELINCOME . « . v v et e e et e e e e e s $ 8,003 § 8,877 9,647
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiaries ............. 485 (1,152) (53)
Other, net. . ... ... (43) 67 (30)
Net cash provided by operating activities .................. 8,445 7,792 9,564
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment in subsidiaries. .. ......... .. ... i — — —
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid .. ... ... .. (7,096) (6,953) (6,802)
Issuance of common stock. .. ........ ... ... . 90 99 49
Stock options exercised . . ......... . 11 8 —
Purchase of treasury stock . .. ...... ... .. i (1,371) (972) (2,929)
Net cash used in financing activities . .. ................... (8,366) (7,818) (9,682)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE)INCASH. . .. ....... ... .. 79 (26) (118)
CASH, BEGINNINGOFYEAR . ... ... e 15 41 159
CASH, END OFYEAR ... ... e $ 94 % 15 41




NOTE 22 - CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) For the Three Months Ended
2008 March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
INterest INCOME . . ..o\ v ittt e et $ 9,048 $ 8,936 $ 9,108 $ 9,016
Interest eXPense ... ..ot 4,167 3,780 3,595 3,290
Net interest income . ............... ... .. 4,881 5,156 5,513 5,726
Provision for loan losses ........................... 60 60 110 145
Non-interest income. .. .. ...t ... 1,876 1,872 1,976 1,763
Securities gains (losses), net . ....................... 38 (251) (1,504) (314)
Non-interest eXpense . .. ... eneennnnn .. 4,445 4,511 4,451 4,542
Income before income tax provision . ................. 2,290 2,206 1,424 2,488
Income tax provision (benefit). ...................... 159 149 (128) 225
NEtINCOME . . . oottt et $ 2,131 $ 2,057 $ 1,552 $ 2,263
Earnings per share -basic .......................... $ 055 % 053 % 040 % 0.59
Earnings per share - diluted. . ....................... $ 055 § 0.53 $ 040  $ 0.59
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) For the Three Months Ended
2007 March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,

INterest iINCOME . . ..ottt $ 8,679 § 8,793 §$ 8,977 $ 9,500
Interest EXPense . . ..o vv vt e 3,939 3,999 4,112 4,397
Net Interest iNCOME . ...ttt it e 4,740 4,794 4,865 5,103
Provision for loanlosses . .......................... 40 10 10 90
Non-interest iNCOME . . . .. ..ottt e 1,648 1,893 2,006 1,985
Securities gains (losses),net ........................ 326 293 — (673)
NoN-interest eXpense . .. ......covvveenerennnnen..n. 4,128 4,340 4,430 4418
Income before income tax provision . ................. 2,546 2,630 2,431 1,907
Income tax provision (benefit). . ..................... 265 295 109 (32)
NetINCOME . . . oo oot e e e $ 2,281  $ 2,335  $ 2,322 % 1,939
Earnings per share -basic .......................... $ 059 § 0.60 § 059 3§ 0.50

Earnings per share - diluted. . .. ..................... $ 059 $ 060 $ 059 $ 0.50




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Consolidated Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income is determined by calculating the difference between the yields earned on interest-earning assets and the rates
paid on interest-bearing liabilities. To compare the tax-exempt asset yields to taxable yields, amounts are adjusted to taxable
equivalents based on the marginal corporate federal tax rate of 34%. The tax equivalent adjustments to net interest income for
2008, 2007, and 2006 were $2,714,000, $2.410,000, and $2,245,000, respectively.

2008 vs 2007

Reported net interest income increased $1,774,000 or 9.10% to $21,276,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2007, although the yield on earning assets decreased to 6.68% from 6.91%, respectively. On a tax
equivalent basis the change in net interest income was an increase of $2,078,000 or 9.48% to $23,990,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2008 compared to the year ended December 31, 2007. Total interest income increased $159,000 primarily due to
growth in the average balance of the loan and securities portfolios. The increase in earning asset volume compensated for the
negative impact on earning asset yields caused by the rate reductions enacted by the Federal Open Markets Committee (“FOMC™).
Interest income recognized on the loan portfolio decreased $871,000 as a portion of the portfolio repriced downward due to the
FOMC actions that lowered the prime rate from 7.25% at December 31, 2007 to 3.25% at December 31, 2008 coupled with the
market dictating that new loan generation occurred at lower rates than during 2007. Interest and dividend income generated from
the investment portfolio and interest bearing cash deposits increased $1,030,000. The increase was the result of the yield on the
investment portfolio increasing 12 basis points (“bp”) while the average balance of the investment portfolio increased by
$17.067,000. The majority of the increase in the securities portfolio was from a leverage strategy undertaken during the second
half of 2007.

Interest expense decreased $1,615,000 to $14,832,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008 as compared to 2007. Leading the
decrease in interest expense was a decline of 11.70% or $1,281,000 related to deposits. The FOMC actions noted previously
together with a strategic shortening of the duration of the portfolio led to an 81 bp decline in the rate paid on time deposits from
4.73% for the year ended December 31, 2007 to 3.92% for the year ended December 31, 2008 resulting in a 51,502,000 decline
in expense. The economic turmoil experienced over the past year has led to a significant decline in short-term interest rates which
has allowed for a 214 bp decline in the rate paid on short-term borrowings. Several long-term debt maturities paved the way for
a decline in the rate paid on long-term borrowings of 23 bp to 4.39% for the year ended December 31, 2008 versus 4.62% for the
year ended December 31, 2007.

2007 vs 2006

Reported net interest income decreased $41,000 or 0.21% to $19,502,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2006 although the yield on earning assets increased to 6.91% from 6.70%, respectively. On a tax
equivalent basis the change in net interest income was an increase of $124,000, which is primarily the result of the yield on
investment securities increasing to 6.25% at December 31, 2007 from 5.93% at December 31, 2006. Total interest income
increased 6.5% or $2,196,000 primarily due to growth in the average balance of the loan portfolio of $8,688,000 coupled with an
increase in the loan yield to 7.27% at December 31, 2007 from 7.10% at December 31, 2006. Interest and dividend income
generated from the investment portfolio and interest bearing cash deposits increased $975,000. The increase was the result of the
yield on the investment portfolio increasing 32 basis points while the average balance of the investment portfolio increased by
$8,749.,000.

Interest expense increased $2,237,000 to $16,447,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to 2006. The majority
of the increase, 91% or $2,043,000, is related to increased levels of average deposits and increased rates being paid on deposit
accounts, which had an average rate paid of 3.35% and 2.88% for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
increases were driven by market competition and rate increases enacted throughout 2006 by the FOMC resulting in a higher
average prime rate during 2007 than 2006. Interest expense related to time deposits increased $2,121,000 as the average rate paid
on time deposits increased to 4.73% from 4.11% for the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase in time deposit rates was
the result of competitive pressure, FOMC rate increases, rate specials related to the opening of a new branch and the one year
anniversary of a second, and incentive to customers to invest in short-term time deposits. In addition, the average balance in time
deposits increased $21,508,000 due to the before mentioned rate specials, transfer of dollars from transaction accounts due to the
increasing rate disparity between products, and the use of brokered deposits to limit the reliance on short-term FHLB funding.

The rate paid on borrowings increased to 4.57% from 4.50% for the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase in rate resulted
in interest expense on borrowings increasing $194,000 with the majority of the increase occurring in the short-term borrowing
category. The short-term borrowing rate increased 11 basis points to 4.45% due to the FOMC rate increases since the start of 2006.
Interest expense associated with long-term borrowings increased $58,000 due to the average balance of long-term FHLB
borrowings increasing $253,000 and a weighted average interest rate on the long-term debt increase of 6 basis points to 4.62% at
December 31, 2007.




AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES

The following tables set forth certain information relating to the Company’s average balance sheet and reflect the average yield on
assets and average cost of liabilities for the periods indicated and the average yields earned and rates paid. Such yields and costs
are derived by dividing income or expense by the average balance of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the periods presented.

(Dollars In Thousands) 2008
Average Average
Balance Interest Rate
ASSETS:
TAX-EXCINPEOAIS - wovs it wwimorsiaia Samu e avam v sabess $ 9.230 $ 603 6.53%
AT otRer 10a5E : soummn wan toesammmm & S arwat. SN SN 361.945 24.830 6.86%
A TORNG i csmmninainss Smse Rt W S ate, s SRR 371.175 25433 6.85%
Taxable SecUINeS srr i Sive s i iieeneTin Rvaaids 104,245 6,008 5.76%
Tax=eXeMPLSEOULIOS < 5. .s hum st bbb bt s am s bnh £ b ins 106,030 7.380 6.96%
Total securities:vemns v SriEraatss LNGaRRES. Do e 210,275 13,388 6.37%
Iiterest-beatine deposits . susiauin s L vseG 10 | 10.00%
Total interest-earning assets .. .............coouiiienon.... 581,460 38,822 6.68%
AL ASNEIS . o vnssvsemononss iR e P PSR P eSS 50,779
TOLAl ASRBIE wmmrervmisins v dismatwseniteiste SRR RATRR, WY SRS $ 632.239
LIABILITIES:
SAVINGS 35 simn cnnnvra, s TR IS TR SEAREE SHA SRR b 60,324 443 0.73%
Super Now deposits. . ... ..ot 52,117 658 1.26%
Money market deposits. . ...t 30,921 699 2.26%
BT 1 (o8 Lo To b 1 e A e e 200,572 7.870 3.92%
L T e g g 343,934 9,670 2.81%
Shoft-term!DOrPOWINGS i wovansamsmi s s i mewmms 50,545 1.181 231%
Long-tertn BOffOWINGS: .uu swvawsvains vvssmmmmsn wem o 89.256 3,981 4.39%
Total BOTEOWIIES cuwwm im srmsmtri semomsiemii. S msmtaes 139.801 5,162 3.64%
Total interest-bearing liabilities. . ............... .. ........ 483,735 14,832 3.05%
Demand deposits. . .. ..o 73,618
Other liabilities .. . ...t e 8,282
SHATE RO IS BTN vy crmsmimrssomys S AR FOT! s R 66,604
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY .... § 632.239
[TBreSt Tate SPPEAT —ocvms ammmsmanisms s sme o wiss 3.63%
Net interest income/margin. .. .........ooveueuienenennn.. $ 23,990 4.14%

+ Fees on loans are included with interest on loans. Loan fees are included in interest income as follows:
2008-$472,000, 2007-$453,000, 2006-$478,000.

» Information on this table has been calculated using average daily balance sheets to obtain average balances.

» Nonaccrual loans have been included with loans for the purpose of analyzing net interest earnings.

« Income and rates on a fully taxable equivalent basis include an adjustment for the difference between annual income
from tax-exempt obligations and the taxable equivalent of such income at the standard 34% tax rate.



2007 2006
Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
$ 7.857 $ 485 6.17% $ 8,173 S 503 6.15%
353,528 25,779 7.29% 344,524 24,545 7.12%
361,385 26,264 1.27% 352,697 25,048 7.10%
93,480 5,474 5.86% 91,767 4,837 5.27%
99,728 6,602 6.62% 92,692 6,102 6.58%
193,208 12,076 6.25% 184.459 10,939 5.93%
345 19 5.51% 152 11 7.24%
554,938 38,359 6.91% 537,308 35,998 6.70%
42,602 40413
S 597,540 $ 577,721
S 58,710 428 0.73% $ 61,958 509 0.82%
46,596 611 1.31% 47,294 655 1.38%
23,920 540 2.26% 23,905 493 2.06%
198,029 9372 4.73% 176,521 7.251 4.11%
327.255 10,951 3.35% 309,678 8,908 2.88%
36,816 1,639 4.45% 34,612 1,503 4.34%
83.490 3.857 4.62% 83,237 3,799 4.56%
120,306 5.496 4.57% 117,849 5,302 4.50%
447,561 16,447 3.67% 427,527 14.210 3.32%
69,953 69,668
6,924 5,899
73,102 74,627
S 597,540 $ 577,721
3.24% 3.38%
3 21,912 3.95% $ 21,788 4.06%
Reconcilement of Taxable Equivalent Net Interest Income
2008 2007 2006
Tolal IRErEst NS v somunmmimas, ietis RESwy 55 $ 36,108 $ 35,949 $ 33,753
Total interest Xpense .. e via v vavs v s sisin 14,832 16,447 14,210
N ITETRSEIACOMIE: i svewsmaraei, sasme susammish 455 21.276 19,502 19,543
Tax equivalent adjustment . .................... 2,714 2,410 2,245
Net interest income
(fully taxable equivalent) ...................... $ 23,990 $ 21,912 $ 21,788




Rate/Volume Analysis

The table below sets forth certain information regarding changes in our interest income and interest expense for the periods
indicated. For interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is provided on changes attributable to (i) changes
in volume (changes in average volume multiplied by old rate) and (ii) changes in rates (changes in rate multiplied by old average
volume). Increases and decreases due to both interest rate and volume, which cannot be separated, have been allocated
proportionally to the change due to volume and the change due to interest rate. Income and interest rates are on a taxable equivalent
basis.

(In Thousands) Year Ended December 31,
2008 vs 2007 2007 vs 2006
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)
Due to Due to
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net
Interest income:
LGang taX-8XEINDE, o smammems sy wsmamsiaois $ 82 26 $ 118 $ (20) $ 2 5 (18)
E0anS; nesrssie von e T i Suve s 638 (1.587) (949) 650 584 1,234
Taxable investment securities . .. ......... 621 (87) 534 88 549 637
Tax-exempt investment securities. . ....... 353 246 778 466 34 500
Interest-bearing deposits. .. ............. (27) 9 (18) 12 (4) 8
Total interest-earning assets. ........... 1,856 (1,393) 463 1,196 1,165 2,361
Interest expense:
Savings deposits . ....ovviiiiiinn. 12 3 15 (30) (51) (81)
Super Now deposits ................... 71 (24) 7 (10) (34) (44)
Money market deposits. . ............... 158 1 159 — 47 47
Time deposits o von s sus ook e 119 (1,621) (1,502) 344 1,777 2,121
Short-term borrowings .. ............... 484 (942) (458) 100 36 136
Long-term borrowings ................. 260 (136) 124 12 46 58
Total interest-bearing liabilities. ........ 1.104 (2,719) (1.615) 416 1,821 2,237
Change in net interest income ........... $ yin s S | 1,326 $§ 2078 $ 780 $ (656) $ 124

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

2008 vs 2007

The provision for loan losses is based upon management’s quarterly review of the loan portfolio. The purpose of the review is to
assess loan quality, identify impaired loans, analyze delinquencies, ascertain loan growth, evaluate potential charge-offs and
recoveries, and assess general economic conditions in the markets served. An external independent loan review is also performed
annually for the Bank. Management remains committed to an aggressive program of problem loan identification and resolution.

The allowance is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans by type, excluding loans for which a specific allowance
has been determined. Loss factors are based on management’s consideration of the nature of the portfolio segments, changes in
mix and volume of the loan portfolio, and historical loan loss experience. In addition, management considers industry standards
and trends with respect to nonperforming loans and its knowledge and experience with specific lending segments.

Although management believes that it uses the best information available to make such determinations and that the allowance for
loan losses is adequate at December 31, 2008, future adjustments could be necessary if circumstances or economic conditions
differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations. A downturn in the local economy or
employment and delays in receiving financial information from borrowers could result in increased levels of nonperforming assets
and charge-offs, increased loan loss provisions and reductions in interest income. Additionally, as an integral part of the
examination process, bank regulatory agencies periodically review the Bank’s loan loss allowance adequacy. The banking
regulators could require the recognition of additions to the loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available
to them at the time of their examination.

The allowance for loan losses increased from $4,130,000 at December 31, 2007 to $4,356,000 at December 31, 2008. At
December 31, 2008, allowance for loan losses was 1.14% of total loans compared to 1.15% of total loans at December 31, 2007.

The provision for loan losses totaled $375,000 for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $150,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2007. Management concluded that the increase of the provision was appropriate when considering the gross loan
growth experienced during 2008 of $21,000,000 coupled with net charge-offs to average loans for the year ended December 31,
2008 of 0.04%. Utilizing both internal and external resources, as noted, senior management has concluded that the allowance for
loan losses remains at a level adequate to provide for probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio.

2007 vs 2006

The allowance for loan losses decreased 1.31% or $55,000 from December 31, 2006 after net charge-offs of $205,000 contributed
to a year-end 2007 allowance for loan losses of $4,130,000 or 1.15% of total loans. Based upon this analysis, as well as the others
noted above, senior management concluded that the allowance for loan losses was at a level adequate to provide for probable losses
inherent in the loan portfolio at December 31, 2007.



Following is a table showing the changes in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005,
and 2004:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Balance at beginning of period .. .. ... covaive o sriaea $ 4130 § 4,185 $ 3679 § 3338 § 3,069
Charge-offs:
Realestatel vy weviiaiums s s Susion 48 —— 50 132 121
Commercial and industrial .................... 51 103 28 206 50
Installment loans to individuals. .. ... ........... 214 201 249 108 112
Total charge-offs vunmuen snsansing saisaas 313 304 327 446 283
Recoveries:
REAbiEStatE cciing vamsimnimsns summmssmase s @ 17 13 68 45 50
Commercial and industrial .................... 60 1 40 8 4
Installment loans to individuals. .. .............. 87 85 90 14 33
Total TECOVETIES: .« awnens e s wmi 164 99 198 67 87
NetCharFR-01s . s minin s winmenmmns e eao 149 205 129 379 196
Additions charged to operations ..................... 375 150 635 720 465
Balanceatendofperiod .........coviiiiiiiiiiiiiinn, $ 4356 $ 4,130 $ 4,185 § 3,679 $ 3,338

Ratio of net charge-offs during the period to average loans
outstanding during the period . ...................... 0.04% 0.06% 0.04% 0.11% 0.06%

NON-INTEREST INCOME

2008 vs 2007

Total non-interest income decreased $2,022,000 from the year ended December 31, 2007 to 2008. Excluding security losses, non-
interest income decreased $45,000. Service charges increased as overdraft protection fees increased $100,000 and offset customer
migrations to checking accounts having reduced or no service charges. Earnings on bank-owned life insurance increased as
additional policies were purchased. Insurance commissions decreased due to the general economic downturn, which has led to a
decrease in volume of sales. Management of The M Group continues to pursue new and build upon current relationships. However,
the sales cycle for insurance and investment products can take typically from six months to one year or more to complete. The
increase in other income was primarily due to increases in revenues from debit card transactions, merchant card commissions, and
title insurance.

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 Change
Amount % Total Amount % Total Amount Yo

Deposit service charges . ................... $ 2,289 41,95 % $ 2246 3003 % § 43 1.91 %
Securities (losses) gains, net ................ (2,031) (37.23) (54) (0.72) (1,977) 3,661.11
Bank-owned life insurance. ................. 472 8.65 410 5.48 62 15.12
Gainonsaleofloans ...................... 882 16.17 921 12.32 (39) (4.23)
Insurance COMMISSIONS . ...........coouunn.. 1.928 35.34 2,222 29.72 (294) (13.23)
013 071 1 b 11 Lo R 1.916 35.12 1,733 23.17 183 10.56

Total non-interest income. .. .............. $§ 5456  100.00 % $ 7478 100.00 %  $ (2,022) (27.04)%
2007 vs 2006

Total non-interest income decreased $1,551,000 from the year ended December 31, 2007 to 2006. Excluding security (losses)
gains and the gain on sale of loans, non-interest income increased $114,000. Service charges decreased $120,000 as overdraft
protection fees declined and customers migrated to new checking accounts having reduced or no service charges. Earnings on
bank-owned life insurance increased $36,000. Insurance commissions decreased $59,000 due to a reduction in the overall
commission from the underwriter that The M Group receives on each insurance contract written. The increase in other income was
primarily due to increases in revenues from debit card transactions, merchant card commissions, and commissions generated by
The M Group for securities transactions.




(In Thousands) 2007 2006 Change

Amount % Total Amount % Total Amount %

Deposit service charges . ................... $ 2.246 30.03 % $ 2366 2620 % $ (120) (5.07)%
Securities (losses) gains, net ................ (54) (0.72) 1,679 18.60 (1,733) (103.22)
Bank-owned life insurance. . ................ 410 5.48 374 4.14 36 9.63
Gainonsaleofloans . ..................... 921 12,32 853 9.45 68 7.97
Insurance cCOmmissions .................... 2,222 29.72 2,281 25.26 (59) (2.59)
ORNET COITIC 00 wirs simwmsosiocatsists RawssES s 1,733 23.17 1.476 16.35 257 17.41

Total non-interest income. . . .............. § 7.478 100.00 % $ 9,029 100.00 % § (1.,551) (17.18)%

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

2008 vs 2007

Total non-interest expenses increased $633,000 from the year ended December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2008, Salaries and
employee benefits increased due to several factors including standard cost of living wage adjustments for employees, increased
benefit costs, and expenses associated with the post-retirement segment of split-dollar bank owned life insurance. Pennsylvania
shares tax decreased due to tax credits associated with an investment in low income housing within the Lycoming County market.
Other expenses increased primarily due to increases in legal and insurance costs coupled with our continued emphasis on giving
back to the communities that we serve resulting in a doubling of donations during 2008 compared to 2007.

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 Change
Amount % Total Amount % Total Amount %

Salaries and employee benefits .............. $ 9,63 5367 % $ 9,078 5243 % § 556 6.12 %
OCCUPANCY, 8L L. 1 v e e siaiis snssosss e s 1,288 7.18 1,306 7.54 (18) (1.38)
Furniture and equipment ................... 1,182 6.59 1,126 6.50 56 4.97
Pennsylvaniasharestax . ................... 421 235 643 3.71 (222) (34.53)
Amortization of investment in

limited parthership; « < voiww s aweenesssas « 712 3.97 761 4.39 (49) (6.44)
Other expenses .. ........covvviiiinnennnn 4.712 26.24 4.402 25.43 310 7.04

Total non-interest expense .. .............. $ 17949 100.00% $17.316 100.00 % $ 633 3.66 %
2007 vs 2006

Total non-interest expenses increased $987,000 from the year ended December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2007. Salaries and
employee benefits increased by $245,000 and were attributed to several factors including standard cost of living wage adjustments
for employees, full year impact of the Montoursville branch, and increased benefit costs. Occupancy expense increased due to the
new branch in Montoursville, which opened in the third quarter of 2006, and increased cost of maintenance and property taxes.
Amortization increase attributed to low income housing partnership that began operation during the fourth quarter of 2006.

(In Thousands) 2007 2006 Change
Amount % Total Amount % Total Amount %Y

Salaries and employee benefits .............. $ 9,078 52.43 % $ 8,833 54.09 % § 245 277 %
Oecupancy, el vy woi sovnmda v SeveiERnes 1,306 7.54 1,137 6.96 169 14.86
Furniture and equipment . .................. 1.126 6.50 1,201 7.36 (75) (6.24)
Pennsylvania sharestax . ................... 643 3.71 598 3.66 45 7.53
Amortization of investment in

limited partnership....................... 761 4.39 245 1.50 516  210.61
CENerExpelsSess: oo snsnits sol NSRS § 4,402 25.43 4,315 26.43 87 2.02

Total non-interest eXpense . . .............. $17,316 100.00 % $ 16,329  100.00 % $§ 987 6.04 %

INCOME TAXES

2008 vs 2007

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2008 resulted in an effective income tax rate of 4.8% compared
to 6.7% for 2007. This decrease is the result of the continued shift in the investment portfolio from taxable mortgage-backed bonds
to tax-exempt municipal bonds coupled with the recognition of tax credits related to low income housing partnerships investments.

2007 vs 2006

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2007 resulted in an effective income tax rate of 6.7% compared
to 16.9% for 2006. This decrease is the result of a shift in the investment portfolio from taxable mortgage-backed bonds to tax-
exempt municipal bonds coupled with the receipt of tax credits related to low income housing partnerships investments.



FINANCIAL CONDITION
INVESTMENTS

2008
The estimated fair value of the investment portfolio decreased $6,346,000 or 2.96% from December 31, 2007 to 2008, while the

amortized cost increased $3,241,000 over the same period. The majority of the changes in value occurred within the state and
municipal segment of the portfolio. The amortized cost position in state and political securities increased $22,607,000 as the Bank
continued to build call protection, maintain taxable equivalent yields, reduce the effective federal income tax rate, and invest in
communities across the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the country. The amortized cost position of U.S. Government and
agency securities decreased $15,934,000 due to the focus on building the municipal bond segment of the portfolio. The increased
level of unrealized losses, which offset the increase in amortized cost, was the result of changes in the yield curve and illiquid
markets, not credit quality, as the credit quality of the portfolio remained sound.

2007

The estimated fair value of the investment portfolio increased $29,429,000 or 15.77% from December 31, 2006 to 2007, while the
amortized cost increased $35,762,000 over the same period. The majority of the changes in value occurred within the state and
municipal segment of the portfolio. The amortized cost position in state and political securities increased $14,993,000 as the Bank
continued to build call protection, maintain taxable equivalent yields, reduce the effective federal income tax rate, and invest in
communities across the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the country. The amortized cost position of other debt securities
increased $13,919,000 as the Bank began a new leverage transaction to enhance net interest income, return on average assets, and
return on average equity. The increased level of unrealized losses, which offset the increase in amortized cost, was the result of
changes in the yield curve, not credit quality, as the credit quality of the portfolio remained sound.

The carrying amounts of investment securities at the dates indicated are summarized as follows for the years ended December 31,
2008, 2007, and 2006:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006
Balance % Portfolio Balance % Portfolio Balance % Portfolio

U.S. Government agencies:
Heldtomaturity ... ................... $ 10 0.00% $ 14 0.01% $ 26 0.01%
Available forsale ..................... 47,586 22.84% 62,904 29.29% 54,152 29.20%
State and political subdivisions (tax-exempt):
Heldtomaturity . ..................... — — — — — —
Available forsale ..................... 103,173 49.51% 107,314 49.98% 103,057 55.56%
State and political subdivisions (taxable):
Heldtomaturity . ..................... — — — — — —

Available forsale . .................... 28,6608 13.76% 10,501 4.89% 2,889 1.56%

Other bonds, notes and debentures:
Heldtomaturity . ..................... 125 0.06% 263 0.12% 257 0.14%
Available forsale ..................... 15,554 7.46% 15,767 7.34% 2,024 1.09%
Total bonds, notes and debentures. . . .. 195,116 93.63% 196,763 91.63% 162,405 87.56%
Corporate stock - Available forsale ............ 13,270 6.37% 17,969 8.37% 23,078 12.44%

Total ... $ 208,386 100.00% $ 214,732 100.00% $ 185,483 100.00%




The following table shows the maturities and repricing of investment securities, at amortized cost and the weighted average yields
(for tax-exempt obligations on a fully taxable basis assuming a 34% tax rate) of such at December 31, 2008:

(In Thousands) Within After one After five After Amortized
One But within But within Ten Cost
Year Five years Ten years Years Total
U.S. Government agencies:
HTM Amount. . ................. $ — 3 — —  $ 10 $ 10
Yield. . ... ... — — — 8.95% 8.95%
AFSAmount ................... — — — 46,452 46,452
Yield. ... — — 5.79% 5.79%
State and political subdivisions (tax-exempt):
HIM Amount. .................. — — — — —
Yield. . ... — — — — —
AFSAmount ................... — — 416 110,654 111,070
Yield. . ... ... ... .. ... — — 8.95% 6.61% 6.62%
State and political subdivisions (taxable):
HTM Amount. .................. — — — — —
Yield. . ... ... ... .. ... — — — — —
AFSAmount ................... — — — 31,188 31,188
Yield. . ... ... — — — 5.94% 5.94%
Other bonds, notes and debentures:
HTM Amount. .................. 25 100 — — 125
Yield. . ... ... 5.55% 6.55% — — 6.35%
AFSAmount ................... — 75 2 16,339 16,416
Yield. . ... — 2.89% 2.37% 6.26% 6.24%
Total Amount. ...................... $ 25 % 175 % 418 § 204,643 $ 205,261
TotalYield......................... 5.55% 4.98% 8.92% 6.29% 6.30%
EQUILY SECUITHIES. « . o\ttt et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 16,429
Total Investment Portfolio Value . ... ... .. e $ 221,690
Total Investment Portfolio Yield. . ... ... . . . $ 5.83%

All yields represent weighted average yields expressed on a tax equivalent basis. They are calculated on the basis of the cost,
adjusted for amortization of premium and accretion of discount, and effective yields weighted for the scheduled maturity of each
security. The taxable equivalent adjustment represents the difference between annual income from tax-exempt obligations and the
taxable equivalent of such income at the standard 34% tax rate (derived by dividing tax-exempt interest by 66%).

LOAN PORTFOLIO

2008

Gross loans of $381,478,000 at December 31, 2008 represented an increase of $21,000,000 from December 31, 2007. The
continued emphasis on well collateralized real estate loans resulted in real estate secured loans increasing $17,039,000 from
December 31, 2007 to 2008. The success in carrying out this long term strategy has played a significant role in limiting net charge-
offs for 2008 to 0.04% of average loans. Despite the softening economy, the Bank has increased outstanding loans while
maintaining its lending practices and is capitalizing on opportunities because larger regional banks have withdrawn, in part, from
select market segments.

2007

Gross loans of $360,478,000 at December 31, 2007 represented an increase of $94,000 from December 31, 2006. The continued
emphasis on well collateralized real estate loans resulted in real estate secured loans increasing $1,991,000 from December 31,
2006 to 2007. The success in carrying out this long term strategy has played a significant role in limiting net charge-offs for 2007
to 0.06% of average loans. Commercial and agricultural loans declined due to the before mentioned emphasis on real estate
secured loans versus equipment, receivables, or inventory secured loans.

The amounts of loans outstanding at the indicted dates are shown in the following table according to type of loan at December 31,
2008. 2007, 2006, 2005, and 2004:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Commercial and agricultural .. ...... $ 40,602 $ 35,739  $ 36,995 % 37,553 $ 31,100
Real estate mortgage:
Residential . . ................... 177,406 163,268 158,219 150,000 147,461
Commercial .. .................. 136,158 132,943 135,404 127,131 123,757
Construction. . .................. 15,838 16,152 16,749 10,681 8,365
Installment loans to individuals . ... .. 12,487 13,317 14,035 14,135 14,918
Less: Net deferred loan fees. ... ... .. 1,013 941 1,018 1,062 1,096

Grossloans ...................... $ 381478  § 360478  § 360,384  § 338,438 § 324,505




The amounts of domestic loans at December 31, 2008 are presented below by category and maturity:

(In Thousands) Commercial Installment
and Loan to
Real Estate Other Individuals Total
Loans with floating interest rates:
1 YRR IES « sive ssmsmmmmmrmsins soimmoamymens $ 18,770 § 9022 § 2317 § 30,109
I through Syears.................... 11,593 1.686 35 13,314
Sthrough 10years. .................. 27411 3814 6 31,231
ARer 1O Years sv: sonsswanis Sinasvons 217414 8.472 678 226,564
Total floating interest rate loans . .. ... 275,188 22,994 3,036 301,218
Loans with predetermined interest rates:
] VAT Or1e88 s o wmmnmann s 5,747 1.329 761 7,837
] throtigh 5 VEATS: . cvswvmmms smsemsnms 13,705 12,196 8,018 33,919
5 through 10 YEars. . oo eveees vmwmmsmses 21,897 3.692 718 26,307
After 10years . ..., 11,545 621 31 12,197
Total predetermined interest rate loans . . . 52.894 17.838 9,528 80,260
IOt o oo wimismmonemmn sz $ 328,082 $ 40832 § 12,564 § 381478

* The loan maturity information is based upon original loan terms and is not adjusted for “rollovers.” In the ordinary course of
business, loans maturing within one year may be renewed, in whole or in part, at interest rates prevailing at the date of renewal.
* Scheduled repayments are reported in maturity categories in which the payment is due.

The Bank does not make loans that provide for negative amortization nor do any loans contain conversion features. The Bank does
not have any foreign loans outstanding at December 31, 2008.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

2008

The allowance for loan losses represents the amount which management estimates is adequate to provide for probable losses
inherent in its loan portfolio, as of the consolidated balance sheet date. All loan losses are charged to the allowance and all
recoveries are credited to it per the allowance method of providing for loan losses. The allowance for loan losses is established
through a provision for loan losses charged to operations. The provision for loan losses is based upon management’s quarterly
review of the loan portfolio. The purpose of the review is to assess loan quality, identify impaired loans, analyze delinquencies,
ascertain loan growth, evaluate potential charge-offs and recoveries, and assess general economic conditions in the markets served.
An external independent loan review is also performed annually for the Bank. Management remains committed to an aggressive
program of problem loan identification and resolution.

The allowance is calculated by applying loss factors to outstanding loans by type, excluding loans for which a specific allowance
has been determined. Loss factors are based on management’s consideration of the nature of the portfolio segments, changes in
mix and volume of the loan portfolio, and historical loan loss experience. In addition, management considers industry standards
and trends with respect to nonperforming loans and its knowledge and experience with specific lending segments.

Although management believes that it uses the best information available to make such determinations and that the allowance for
loan losses is adequate at December 31, 2008, future adjustments could be necessary if circumstances or economic conditions
differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations. A downturn in the local economy or
employment, and delays in receiving financial information from borrowers could result in increased levels of nonperforming assets
and charge-offs, increased loan loss provisions and reductions in interest income. Additionally, as an integral part of the
examination process, bank regulatory agencies periodically review the Bank’s allowance for loan losses. The banking agencies
could require the recognition of additions to the loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at
the time of their examination.

The allowance for loan losses increased from $4,130,000 at December 31, 2007 to $4.356,000 at December 31, 2008. At
December 31, 2008, allowance for loan losses was 1.14% of total loans compared to 1.15% of total loans at December 31, 2007.
This percentage is consistent with the Bank’s historical experience and peer banks. Management’s conclusion is that the allowance
for loan losses is adequate to provide for probable losses inherent in its loan portfolio as of the balance sheet date.

Based on management’s loan-by-loan review, the past performance of the borrowers, and current economic conditions, including
recent business closures and bankruptcy levels, management does not anticipate any current losses related to nonaccrual,
nonperforming, or classified loans above those that have already been considered in its overall judgment of the adequacy of the
reserve.

2007

At December 31, 2007, the allowance for loan losses as a percent of total loans decreased to 1.15% from 1.16% at December 31,
2006. An increase in gross loans of $94,000 from $360,384,000 at December 31, 2006 to $360,478,000 at December 31, 2007
coupled with net charge-offs of $205,000 led to the slight decline in the allowance for loan losses as a percent of total loans.

NONPERFORMING LOANS
Nonaccrual loans increased $541,000 to $1.496,000 at December 31, 2008 as several commercial real estate relationships
deteriorated in quality. Overall nonperforming loans increased $435,000 to $1,755,000 from fiscal year end 2007.

The following table presents information concerning nonperforming loans. The accrual of interest will be discontinued when the
principal or interest of a loan is in default for 90 days or more. or as soon as payment is questionable, unless the loan is well secured




and in the process of collection. Consumer loans and residential real estate loans secured by 1 to 4 family dwellings are not
ordinarily subject to those guidelines. The reversal of previously accrued but uncollected interest applicable to any loan placed in
a nonaccrual status and the treatment of subsequent payments of either principal or interest will be handled in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. These principles do not require a write-oft of previously accrued interest if principal and
interest are ultimately protected by sound collateral values. A nonperforming loan may be restored to accruing status when:

1. Principal and interest is no longer due and unpaid;
2. It becomes well secured and in the process of collection;
3. Prospects for future contractual payments are no longer in doubt;

(In Thousands) Total Nonperforming Loans
90 Days
Nonaccrual Past Due Total

200 o s s s sl s e waisa $ 1,476 $ 259 § 1.735
200T sa Dusmnsmy s T 955 365 1,320
2006550 vl SRR T 370 119 489
2005 .o 540 63 603
2004 .. 1,381 345 1,726
L 827 429 1,256

The level of nonaccruing loans continues to fluctuate annually and is attributed to the various economic factors experienced both
regionally and nationally. Overall; the portfolio is well secured with a majority of the balance making regular payments or
scheduled to be satisfied in the near future. Presently, there are no significant amounts of loans where serious doubts exist as to
the ability of the borrower to comply with the current loan payment terms which are not included in the nonperforming categories
as indicated above.

Management’s judgment in determining the amount of the additions to the allowance charged to operating expense considers the
following factors:

1. Economic conditions and the impact on the loan portfolio.

2. Analysis of past loan charge-offs experienced by category and comparison to outstanding loans.

3. Problem loans on overall portfolio quality.

4. Reports of examination of the loan portfolio by the Pennsylvania State Department of Banking and the FDIC.

Allocation in the Allowance for Loan Losses

Percent of
Loans in
Each
Category to
December 31, 2008: Amount Total Loans
Balance at end of period applicable to:
Coramercialiand apriculial .o covamnssus cosmmmimm s smmi e S $ 580 10.6%
Real estate mortgage:
Residential. . . ... 6359 46.4%
7o) 51 19101 50T [P PGy Pl et R it A i St S P el Ay 8 i g Pty 1,326 35.6%
CoNSruction oq e ivainam TG e Dueae Sl s Esey TanE e T i 1,471 4.1%
Installment loans toindividuals . ... ... e 250 3.3%
ERENOCALED oo v s s sovsmme s sramvaemsis same e oy fa@simste ps e 70
T siarsrssommamsrsiess Kosmrmoass b SIREAHOE R KA SRS $ 4.356 100.0%
December 31, 2007:
Balance at end of period applicable to:
Commercial and agricultaral ... coeseeinny s Savewiniin ou s $ 823 9.9%
Real estate mortgage:
RESIASIIAL. o imamuasinm memansases Peamesmss DS smia e S 1,031 45.1%
Commercial. . . ... e 1,634 36.8%
CONSITUCTION &+« v e et et et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 112 4.5%
Installment loans to individuals . .. . ... ... 228 3.7%
Unallocated: s soneminme s coiniina e U usin rur s o auves 302 —

Totaliu. womsvme s @ in Se e i SETnRRRES B AT W $ 4,130 100.0%




Percent of
Loans in
Each
Category to

December 31, 2006: Amount Total Loans
Balance at end of period applicable to:
Commereial and agricultural .o som Syemnmeonys s s Db snatene § b 679 10.2%
Real estate mortgage:
RESHIETHAL: v vrsiinis mmmimsenion, coim s e i Maasme s e auemasmmsss o 951 43.8%
160 L2 1 b e e N e e g e 1,972 37.5%
CONSIUCTION & . o\ttt et s et e e e e e et e et ettt e 108 4.6%
Installment loans to individuals . .. ... ... .. 2905 3.9%
87272 a1 o ot O R R S 180 —
Total e iryesiie i Hen coms s, Ia e et e, § $ 4,185 100.0%
December 31, 2005:
Balance at end of period applicable to:
Commercial and agricultural .. .......... ... . $ 582 10.1%
Real estate mortgage:
Residentidl:cauirsmnn mresn i v Simsmemnnn G s § 1,107 44.2%
COMMEICIaAL: voovuw wanmmmessn st e i Sousemaden S, 1,482 37.5%
)7 1 1 (] | e T Ty 79 3.1%
Installment loans to individuals . .. .....ccviiiiiii i e 192 5.1%
TAALGEATREL - . comrecsmsnisres St Sniams s o Si R e aTs (Dol SR eeie) X 237 —
0157 $ 3,679 100.0%
December 31, 2004:
Balance at end of period applicable to:
Commercial and: AETIOUIATL . < oo wasawmisammaim sommmaant Svaisttmsi $ 36l 9.1%
Real estate mortgage:
R L 1,280 46.1%
Commercial. . ...t e 1,399 37.5%
CONSIIUCTION & o ottt et e et et et ettt e et 73 2.5%
Installment loans to individuals . . . ... ... ... .. 207 4.8%
Unallocated:: imrssiim conmassss i s R s e TR IeES 16 —
Total sicaammsn smitom v S s nnls s S AeaRAEN 8 $ 3,338 100.0%
DEPOSITS

2008 vs 2007

Total average deposits were $417,552,000 for 2008, an increase of $20,344,000 or 5.12% from 2007. Core deposits, which excludes
time deposits, increased due to renewed focus on deposit gathering efforts and the impact of natural gas exploration through out our
market footprint. Time deposits remained stable as the Bank focused on service rather than attracting deposits purely on rate. In
addition, the Bank has been able to capitalize on its reputation of safety and soundness during the events of 2008 that unsettled
consumer confidence. Additionally, the FDIC temporarily raised the limit on federal deposit insurance from $100,000 to $250,000.
The Bank has also chosen to participate in an FDIC program pursuant to which all noninterest-bearing transaction accounts are
guaranteed in full by the FDIC until December 31, 2009, regardless of the standard maximum deposit insurance amount.

2007 vs 2006

Total average deposits were $397,208,000 for 2007, an increase of $17,862,000 or 4.71% from 2006. Noninterest-bearing deposits
increased slightly to $69,953,000. Time deposits increased $21,508,000 or 12.19% as deposits shifted from transaction accounts
to time deposits, due to the continued rate disparity between time deposits and other deposit types. The rate on time deposits
increased due to the actions taken by the FOMC during 2006, which increased the overall rate paid on time deposits. In addition,
the Bank utilized brokered time deposits to supplement market area deposit funding with the level of brokered deposits decreasing
$16,197,000 to $8,831,000 at December 31, 2007.

The average amount and the average rate paid on deposits are summarized below for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006:

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006

Average Average Average

Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Noninterest-bearing. . ............... 73618 000% § 69,953  0.00% S 69,668 0.00%
SAVINPS: cndnu Sin s TrE et T S 60,324 0.73% 58,710 0.73% 61,958 0.82%
SOPEENOW 55, t35 5 vivesan it Tmveias 52,117 1.26% 46,596 1.31% 47,294 1.38%
Money market .. ................... 30,921 2.26% 23,920 2.26% 23,905 2.06%
115171 S 200,572 3.92% 198,029 4.73% 176,521 4.11%

Total average deposits . . . . 417,552 231% § 397.208 2.76% $ 379,346 2.35%




SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2008

Shareholders’ equity decreased $9,532,000 to $61,027,000 at December 31, 2008 as accumulated comprehensive loss increased
$6.,327.,000, and $1,371.000 in common stock was strategically repurchased as part of the previously announced stock buyback
plan, while net income outpaced dividends paid. The decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income is a result of a decline
in the market value of certain securities held in the investment portfolio at December 31, 2008 compared to December 31, 2007,
resulting in a net unrealized loss of $8,486,000 at December 31, 2008 compared to a net unrealized loss of $2,159,000 at December
31, 2007. In addition, the net excess of the projected benefit obligation over the market value of the plan assets of the defined
benefit pension plan increased $2,405,000 due to a decline in the market value of the plan assets caused by the significant downturn
in the stock and bond markets over the past year. The current level of shareholders’ equity equates to a book value per share of
$15.93 at December 31, 2008 compared to $18.21 at December 31, 2007 and an equity to asset ratio of 9.35% at December 31,
2008. Book value per share, excluding accumulated other comprehensive loss, was $19.13 at December 31, 2008 compared to
$19.12 at December 31, 2007. During the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2008 cash dividends of $0.46 and $1.84
per share were paid to shareholders compared to $0.46 and $1.79 for the comparable periods of 2007.

2007

Shareholders’ equity decreased $4,035,000 to $70,559.000 at December 31, 2007 as net income outpaced dividends paid,
accumulated comprehensive income decreased $5,094,000, and $972,000 in treasury stock was strategically purchased as part of
the previously announced stock buyback plan. The decrease in accumulated comprehensive income is the result of a decrease in
market value, or net unrealized loss, of the investment portfolio at December 31, 2007 as compared to December 31, 2006, and
the net excess of the projected benefit obligation over the market value of the plan assets of the defined benefit pension plan. The
current level of shareholders’ equity equates to a book value per share of $19.12 at December 31, 2007 as compared to $18.21 at
December 31, 2006 and an equity to asset ratio of 11.23% at December 31, 2007. During the twelve months ended December 31,
2007 cash dividends of $1.79 per share were paid to shareholders. The dividends represented a 3% increase or $0.06 per share
over the dividends paid during the comparable period of 2006.

Bank regulators have risk based capital guidelines. Under these guidelines the Company and Bank are required to maintain
minimum ratios of core capital and total qualifying capital as a percentage of risk weighted assets and certain off-balance sheet
items. At December 31, 2008, both the Company’s and Bank’s required ratios were well above the minimum ratios as follows:

Minimum

Company Bank Standards
Tier] capifalyatic) sun mvvesnsrs s 9.7% 8.3% 4.0%
Total capital ratio .. ................ 16.0% 13.9% 8.0%

For a more comprehensive discussion of these requirements, see “Regulations and Supervision™ in Item 1 of the Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Management believes that the Company will continue to exceed regulatory capital requirements.

RETURN ON EQUITY AND ASSETS:

The ratio of net income to average total assets and average shareholders’ equity and other certain equity ratios are presented as
follows:

2008 2007 2006
Percentage of net income to:
Average total ASEELS v a inv smsomainams s e ST, £ e e T R A 1.27% 1.49% 1.67%
Average shatehOldErs BQUILY: o v misin msssiaramimn souis s mle s s samis s o 12.02% 12.14% 12.93%
Percentage of dividends declared tonetincome .............ccoviininirinnnnen.., 88.67% 78.33% 70.51%

Percentage of average shareholders’ equity to average total assets . . ................. 10.53% 12.23% 12.92%



LIQUIDITY, INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY AND MARKET RISK

Fundamental objectives of the Company’s asset/liability management process are to maintain adequate liquidity while minimizing
interest rate risk. The maintenance of adequate liquidity provides the Company with the ability to meet its financial obligations to
depositors, loan customers, and sharcholders. Additionally, it provides funds for normal operating expenditures and business
opportunities as they arise. The objective of interest rate sensitivity management is to increase net interest income by managing
interest sensitive assets and liabilities in such a way that they can be repriced in response to changes in market interest rates.

The Company, like other financial institutions, must have sufficient funds available to meet its liquidity needs for deposit
withdrawals, loan commitments, and expenses. In order to control cash flow, the bank estimates future flows of cash from deposits
and loan payments. The primary sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest payments on loans and mortgage-backed
securities, as well as FHLB borrowings. Funds generated are used principally to fund loans and purchase investment securities.
Management believes the Company has adequate resources to meet its normal funding requirements.

Management monitors the Company’s liquidity on both a long and short-term basis, thereby, providing management necessary
information to react to current balance sheet trends. Cash flow needs are assessed and sources of funds are determined. Funding
strategies consider both customer needs and economical cost. Both short and long term funding needs are addressed by maturities
and sales of available for sale investment securities, loan repayments and maturities, and liquidating money market investments
such as federal funds sold. The use of these resources, in conjunction with access to credit, provides core ingredients to satisfy
depositor, borrower, and creditor needs.

Management monitors and determines the desirable level of liquidity. Consideration is given to loan demand, investment
opportunities, deposit pricing and growth potential, as well as the current cost of borrowing funds. The Company has a current
borrowing capacity at the FHLB of $213.839,000 with $147,791,000 utilized, leaving $66,048,000 available. In addition to this
credit arrangement, the Company has additional lines of credit with correspondent banks of $13,845,000. The Company’s
management believes that it has sufficient liquidity to satisfy estimated short-term and long-term funding needs.

Interest rate sensitivity, which is closely related to liquidity management, is a function of the repricing characteristics of the
Company’s portfolio of assets and liabilities. Asset/liability management strives to match maturities and rates between loan and
investment security assets with the deposit liabilities and borrowings that fund them. Successful asset/liability management results
in a balance sheet structure which can cope effectively with market rate fluctuations. The matching process is affected by
segmenting both assets and liabilities into future time periods (usually 12 months, or less) based upon when repricing can be
effected. Repriceable assets are subtracted from repriceable liabilities, for a specific time period to determine the “gap”, or
difference. Once known, the gap is managed based on predictions about future market interest rates. Intentional mismatching, or
gapping, can enhance net interest income if market rates move as predicted. However, if market rates behave in a manner contrary
to predictions, net interest income will suffer. Gaps, therefore, contain an element of risk and must be prudently managed. In
addition to gap management, the Company has an asset liability management policy which incorporates a market value at risk
calculation which is used to determine the effects of interest rate movements on shareholders’ equity and a simulation analysis to
monitor the effects of interest rate changes on the Company’s balance sheet.

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

In this analysis the Company examines the result of a 100 and 200 basis point change in market interest rates and the effect on net
interest income. It is assumed that the change is instantaneous and that all rates move in a parallel manner. Assumptions are also
made concerning prepayment speeds on mortgage loans and mortgage securities.

The following is a rate shock forecast for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2009 assuming a static balance sheet as of
December 31, 2008.

(In Thousands) Parallel Rate Shock in Basis Points

=200 -100 Static +100 +200
Net interest income ......... $ 23038 § 22336 3% Z1,.28T % 20344 § 19,333
Change from static.......... 1,751 1.049 (943) (1,954)
Percent change from static. . . . 8.23% 4.93% -2.63% -6.33%

The model utilized to create the report presented above makes various estimates at each level of interest rate change regarding cash
flow from principal repayment on loans and mortgage-backed securities and or call activity on investment securities. Actual results
could differ significantly from these estimates which would result in significant differences in the calculated projected change. In
addition, the limits stated above do not necessarily represent the level of change under which management would undertake
specific measures to realign its portfolio in order to reduce the projected level of change. Generally, management believes the
Company is well positioned to respond expeditiously when the market interest rate outlook changes.




INFLATION

The asset and liability structure of a financial institution is primarily monetary in nature; therefore, interest rates rather than
inflation have a more significant impact on the Company’s performance. Interest rates are not always affected in the same direction
or magnitude as prices of other goods and services, but are reflective of fiscal policy initiatives or economic factors that are not
measured by a price index.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s accounting policies are integral to understanding the results reported. The accounting policies are described in
detail in Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements. Our most complex accounting policies require management’s judgment
to ascertain the valuation of assets, liabilities, commitments, and contingencies. We have established detailed policies and control
procedures that are intended to ensure valuation methods are well controlled and applied consistently from period to period. In
addition, the policies and procedures are intended to ensure that the process for changing methodologies occurs in an appropriate
manner. The following is a brief description of our current accounting policies involving significant management valuation
judgments.

Other Than Temporary Impairment of Debt and Equity Securities

Debt and Equity securities are evaluated periodically to determine whether a decline in their value is other than temporary.
Management utilizes criteria such as the magnitude and duration of the decline, in addition to the reason underlying the decline,
to determine whether the loss in value is other than temporary. The term “other than temporary” is not intended to indicate that the
decline is permanent. It indicates that the prospects for a near term recovery of value are not necessarily favorable, or that there
is a lack of evidence to support fair values equal to, or greater than, the carrying value of the investment. Once a decline in value
is determined to be other than temporary, the value of the security is reduced and a corresponding charge to earnings is recognized.
For a full discussion of the Company’s methodology of assessing impairment, refer to Note 3 of “Notes and Consolidated Financial
Statements” of the Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Allowance for Loan Losses
Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance for loan losses involves a high degree of judgment. The Company’s allowance for
loan losses provides for probable losses based upon evaluations of known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio.

Management uses historical information to assess the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses as well as the prevailing business
environment; as it is affected by changing economic conditions and various external factors, which may impact the portfolio in
ways currently unforeseen. The allowance is increased by provisions for loan losses and by recoveries of loans previously charged-
off and reduced by loans charged-off. For a full discussion of the Company’s methodology of assessing the adequacy of the reserve
for loan losses, refer to Note 1 of “Notes and Consolidated Financial Statements” of the Annual Report of Form 10-K.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As discussed in Note 6 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements™ of the Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company
must assess goodwill and other intangible assets each year for impairment. This assessment involves estimating cash flows for
future periods. If the future cash flows were less than the recorded goodwill and other intangible assets balances, we would be
required to take a charge against earnings to write down the assets to the lower value.

Deferred Tax Assets

We use an estimate of future earnings to support our position that the benefit of our deferred tax assets will be realized. If future
income should prove non-existent or less than the amount of the deferred tax assets within the tax years to which they may be
applied, the asset may not be realized and our net income will be reduced. Our deferred tax assets are described further in Note
10 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” of the Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Pension Benefits

Pension costs and liabilities are dependent on assumptions used in calculating such amounts. These assumptions include discount
rates, benefits earned, interest costs, expected return on plan assets, mortality rates, and other factors. In accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods
and, therefore, generally affect recognized expense and the recorded obligation of future periods. While management believes that
the assumptions used are appropriate, differences in actual experience or changes in assumptions may affect the Company’s
pension obligations and future expense. Our pension benefits are described further in Note 11 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” of the Annual Report on Form 10-K.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The Company has various financial obligations, including contractual obligations which may require future cash payments. The
following table presents, as of December 31, 2008, significant fixed and determinable contractual obligations to third parties by
payment date. Further discussion of the nature of each obligation is included in “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements™
of the Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(In Thousands) Payments Due In
One to Three to Over
One Year Three Five Five
or Less Years Years Years Total
Deposits without a stated maturity ................... $ 224373 $ — S — 8 — $ 224,373
Time deposits ........... 158,473 33,913 3,832 778 196,996
Repurchase agreements . .. ......................... 12,933 — — — 12,933
Short-term borrowings, FHLB ...................... 61,013 — — — 61,013
Long-term borrowings, FHLB ...................... — 25,500 20,528 40,750 86,778
Operating 1€ases . ..........couitiinininirnenennnn. 387 700 523 1,703 3,313

The Corporation’s operating lease obligations represent short and long-term lease and rental payments for branch facilities. The
Bank leases certain facilities under operating leases which expire on various dates through 2024. Renewal options are available
on the majority of these leases.



CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR PURPOSES OF THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995
This Report contains certain “forward-looking statements” including statements concerning plans, objectives, future events or
performance and assumptions and other statements which are other than statements of historical fact. The Company wishes to
caution readers that the following important factors, among others, may have affected and could in the future affect the Company’s
actual results and could cause the Company’s actual results for subsequent periods to differ materially from those expressed in any
forward-looking statement made by or on behalf of the Company herein: (i) the effect of changes in laws and regulations, including
federal and state banking laws and regulations, with which the Company must comply, and the associated costs of compliance with
such laws and regulations either currently or in the future as applicable; (ii) the effect of changes in accounting policies and
practices, as may be adopted by the regulatory agencies as well as by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or of changes in
the Company’s organization, compensation and benefit plans; (iii) the effect on the Company’s competitive position within its
market area of the increasing consolidation within the banking and financial services industries, including the increased
competition from larger regional and out-of-state banking organizations as well as non-bank providers of various financial
services; (iv) the effect of changes in interest rates; and (v) the effect of changes in the business cycle and downturns in the local,
regional or national economies.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
& SNODGRASS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
AND CONSULTANTS

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company™) and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note | to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted Emerging Issues
Task Force No. 06-4, Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Post-retirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split Dollar Life
Insurance Arrangements. Also, as discussed in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2008, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
Company’s and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission,
and our report dated March 10, 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting,.

L bl AC

Wexford, PA
March 10, 2009

S.R. Snodgrass, A.C.
1000 Stonewood Drive, Suite 200 Wexford, PA 15090~8399 Phone: 724~934-0344 Facsimile: 724~934-0345
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PART I
ITEM 1 BUSINESS

A. General Development of Business and History

On January 7, 1983, Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania as a bank holding company. The Jersey Shore State Bank, a Pennsylvania state-charted bank, (the “Bank™) became
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. and each outstanding share of Bank common stock was converted into one share of
Company common stock. This transaction was approved by the shareholders of the Bank on April 11, 1983 and was effective on
July 12, 1983. The Company’s two other wholly-owned subsidiaries are Woods Real Estate Development Company, Inc. and
Woods Investment Company, Inc. The Company’s business has consisted primarily of managing and supervising the Bank, and its
principal source of income has been dividends paid by the Bank and Woods Investment Company, Inc,

The Bank is engaged in commercial and retail banking which includes the acceptance of time, savings, and demand deposits, the
funding of commercial, consumer, and mortgage loans, and safe deposit services. Utilizing a thirteen branch office network, ATMs,
internet, and telephone banking delivery channels, the Bank delivers its products and services to the communities it resides in.

In October 2000, the Bank acquired The M Group, Inc. D/B/A The Comprehensive Financial Group (“The M Group”). The M
Group, which operates as a subsidiary of the Bank, offers insurance and securities brokerage services. Securities are offered by
The M Group through ING Financial Partners, Inc., a registered broker-dealer.

Neither the Company nor the Bank anticipates that compliance with environmental laws and regulations will have any material
effect on capital expenditures, earnings, or on its competitive position. The Bank is not dependent on a single customer or a few
customers, the loss of whom would have a material effect on the business of the Bank.

The Bank employed 192 persons as of December 31, 2008 in either a full-time or part-time capacity. The Company does not have
any employees. The principal officers of the Bank also serve as officers of the Company.

Woods Investment Company, Inc., a Delaware holding company, maintains an investment portfolio that is managed for total return
and to fund dividend payments to the Company.

Woods Real Estate Development Company, Inc. serves the Company through its acquisition and ownership of certain properties
utilized by the Bank.

A copy of the Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct for the Corporation can be requested from Brian Knepp, Chief Financial
Officer, at 300 Market Street, Williamsport, PA 17701. A link with access to the Corporation’s SEC filings, annual reports, and
quarterly filings can be found at www.jssb.com.

B. Regulation and Supervision

The Company is also subject to the provisions of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHCA”) and to
supervision and examination by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “FRB”). The Bank is subject to the
supervision and examination by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC™), as its primary federal regulator and as
the insurer of the Bank’s deposits. The Bank is also regulated and examined by the Pennsylvania Department of Banking (the
“Department”).

The insurance activities of The M Group are subject to regulation by the insurance departments of the various states in which The
M Group conducts business including principally the Pennsylvania Department of Insurance. The securities brokerage activities of
The M Group are subject to regulation by federal and state securities commissions.

The FRB has issued regulations under the BHCA that require a bank holding company to serve as a source of financial and
managerial strength to its subsidiary banks. As a result, the FRB, pursuant to such regulations, may require the Company to stand
ready to use its resources to provide adequate capital funds to the Bank during periods of financial stress or adversity. The BHCA
requires the Company to secure the prior approval of the FRB before it can acquire all or substantially all of the assets of any bank,
or acquire ownership or control of 5% or more of any voting shares of any bank. Such a transaction would also require approval
of the Department.

A bank holding company is prohibited under the BHCA from engaging in, or acquiring direct or indirect control of, more than 5%
of the voting shares of any company engaged in non-banking activities unless the FRB, by order or regulation, has found such
activities to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. Under the BHCA,
the FRB has the authority to require a bank holding company to terminate any activity or relinquish control of a non-bank
subsidiary (other than a non-bank subsidiary of a bank) upon the FRB’s determination that such activity or control constitutes a
serious risk to the financial soundness and stability of any bank subsidiary of the bank holding company.

Bank holding companies are required to comply with the FRB’s risk-based capital guidelines. The risk-based capital rules are
designed to make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banks and bank holding
companies and to minimize disincentives for holding liquid assets. Currently, the required minimum ratio of total capital to risk-
weighted assets (including certain off-balance sheet activities, such as standby letters of credit) is 8%. At least half of the total
capital is required to be Tier I capital, consisting principally of common shareholders” equity, less certain intangible assets. The
remainder (“Tier 2 capital”) may consist of certain preferred stock, a limited amount of subordinated debt, certain hybrid capital
instruments and other debt securities, 45% of net unrealized gains on marketable equity securities, and a limited amount of the
general loan loss allowance. The risk-based capital guidelines are required to take adequate account of interest rate risk,
concentration of credit risk, and risks of nontraditional activities.



In addition to the risk-based capital guidelines, the FRB requires each bank holding company to comply with the leverage ratio,
under which the bank holding company must maintain a minimum level of Tier 1 capital to average total consolidated assets of 3%
for those bank holding companies which have the highest regulatory examination ratings and are not contemplating or experiencing
significant growth or expansion. All other bank holding companies are expected to maintain a leverage ratio of at least 4% to 5%.
The Bank is subject to similar capital requirements adopted by the FDIC.

Dividends
Federal and state law impose limitations on the payment of dividends by the Bank. The Pennsylvania Banking Code restricts the
availability of capital funds for payment of dividends by the Bank to its additional paid-in capital.

In addition to the dividend restrictions described above, the banking regulators have the authority to prohibit or to limit the payment
of dividends by the Bank if, in the banking regulator’s opinion, payment of a dividend would constitute an unsafe or unsound
practice in light of the financial condition of the Bank.

Under Pennsylvania law, the Company may not pay a dividend, if, after giving effect thereto, it would be unable to pay its debts as
they become due in the usual course of business and, after giving effect to the dividend, the total assets of the Company would be less
than the sum of its total liabilities plus the amount that would be needed, if the Company were to be dissolved at the time of
distribution, to satisfy the preferential rights upon dissolution of shareholders whose rights are superior to those receiving the dividend.

It is also the policy of the FRB that a bank holding company generally only pay dividends on common stock out of net income
available to common shareholders over the past year and only if the prospective rate of earnings retention appears consistent with
a bank holding company’s capital needs, asset quality, and overall financial condition. In the current financial and economic
environment, the FRB has indicated that bank holding companies should carefully review their dividend policy and has
discouraged dividend pay-out ratios at the 100% level unless both asset quality and capital are very strong. A bank holding
company also should not maintain a dividend level that places undue pressure on the capital of such institution’s subsidiaries, or
that may undermine the bank holding company’s ability to serve as a source of strength for such subsidiaries.

C. Regulation of the Bank

From time to time, various types of federal and state legislation have been proposed that could result in additional regulation of,
and restrictions of, the business of the Bank. It cannot be predicted whether any such legislation will be adopted or how such
legislation would affect the business of the Bank. As a consequence of the extensive regulation of commercial banking activities
in the United States, the Bank’s business is particularly susceptible to being affected by federal legislation and regulations that may
increase the costs of doing business.

Prompt Corrective Action - The FDIC has specified the levels at which an insured institution will be considered “well-capitalized,”
“adequately capitalized.” “undercapitalized,” and “critically undercapitalized.” In the event an institution’s capital deteriorates to the
“undercapitalized™ category or below, the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (the “FDIA”) and FDIC regulations prescribe an increasing
amount of regulatory intervention, including: (1) the institution of a capital restoration plan by a bank and a guarantee of the plan
by a parent institution and liability for civil money damages for failure to fullfill its committment on that guarantee; and (2) the
placement of a hold on increases in assets, number of branches, or lines of business. If capital has reached the significantly or
critically undercapitalized levels, further material restrictions can be imposed, including restrictions on interest payable on accounts,
dismissal of management and (in critically undercapitalized situations) appointment of a receiver. For well-capitalized institutions,
the FDIA provides authority for regulatory intervention where the institution is deemed to be engaging in unsafe or unsound
practices or receives a less than satisfactory examination report rating for asset quality, management, earnings or liquidity.

Deposit Insurance

The enactment of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA™) temporarily raised the limit on federal deposit
insurance coverage from $100,000 to $250.000 per depositor. The limits are scheduled to return to $100,000 on January 1, 2010.
Additionally, the Bank has chosen to participate in the FDIC’s Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program (TLGP) as it applies to the
FDIC guarantee of noninterest-bearing transaction account deposits of the Bank. In return for these guarantees, the FDIC is paid
a fee based on the amount of the deposit. Under the transaction account guarantee component of the TLGP, all noninterest-bearing
transaction accounts maintained at the Bank are insured in full by the FDIC until December 31, 2009, regardless of the standard
maximum deposit insurance amount.

On February 27, 2009, the FDIC Board of Directors took further action to strengthen the Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF”) by
adopting an interim rule imposing a special assessment on insured institutions of 20 basis points with the option of imposing an
emergency special assessment after June 30, 2009 of up to 10 basis points, adopting a final rule implementing changes to the risk-
based assessment system, and setting assessment rates beginning with the second quarter of 2009. The ultimate goal of these FDIC
is fo restore the DIF reserve ratio to 1.15% within the next seven years. The FDIC increased the DIF reserve ratio restoration period
from five to seven years due to recent economic pressures impacting banks and the financial system.

Assessment rates beginning April 1, 2009 will increase. Banks in the top tier risk category currently pay any where from 12 cents
per S$100 of deposits to 14 cents per $100 of deposits for FDIC insurance. FDIC insurance assessment rates for these banks will
increase and will now include an initial base rate of between 12 cents per $100 of deposits to 16 cents per $100 of deposits with
higher assessment rates for those institutions that rely significantly on secured borrowings and brokered deposits. The FDIC will
reduce assessment rates for smaller banks, banks with high levels of tier 1 capital and banks that hold long-term unsecured debt.

The Bank continues to be required to make payments for the servicing of obligations of the Financing Corporation (FICO) that
were issued in connection with the resolution of savings and loan associations, so long as such obligations remain outstanding.

Federal Home Loan Bank System

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (the “FHLB"), which is one of 12 regional Federal Home Loan
Banks. Each Federal Home Loan Bank serves as a reserve or central bank for its members within its assigned region. It is funded
primarily from funds deposited by member institutions and proceeds from the sale of consolidated obligations of the Federal Home
Loan Bank System. It makes loans to members (i.e., advances) in accordance with policies and procedures established by the board
of directors of the Federal Home Loan Bank. At December 31, 2008, the Bank had $147.791,000 in FHLB advances.




As a member, the Bank is required to purchase and maintain stock in the FHLB in an amount equal to the greater of 1% of its
aggregate unpaid residential mortgage loans, home purchase contracts or similar obligations at the beginning of each year or 5%
of'its outstanding advances from the FHLB. At December 31, 2008, the Bank had $7.101.000 million in stock of the FHLB which
was in compliance with this requirement.

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008, Financial Stability Plan, American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009,
Homeowner Affordability and Stability Plan, and Other Regulatory Developments

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008

On October 3, 2008, EESA was enacted. EESA enables the federal government, under terms and conditions to be developed by
the Secretary of the Treasury, to insure troubled assets, including mortgage-backed securities, and collect premiums from
participating financial institutions. EESA includes, among other provisions: (a) the $700 billion Troubled Assets Relief Program
(TARP), under which the Secretary of the Treasury is authorized to purchase, insure, hold, and sell a wide variety of financial
instruments, particularly those that are based on or related to residential or commercial mortgages originated or issued on or before
March 14, 2008; and (b) an increase in the amount of deposit insurance provided by the FDIC.

Financial Stability Plan

On February 10, 2009, the Financial Stability Plan (FSP) was announced by the U.S. Treasury Department. The FSP is a
comprehensive set of measures intended to shore up the financial system. The core elements of the plan include making bank
capital injections, creating a public-private investment fund to buy troubled assets, establishing guidelines for loan modification
programs and expanding the Federal Reserve lending program. The U.S. Treasury Department has indicated more details regarding
the FSP are to be announced on a newly created government website, FinancialStability.gov, in the next several weeks. We
continue to monitor these developments and assess their potential impact on our business.

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

On February 17, 2009, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) was enacted. ARRA is intended to provide
a stimulus to the U.S. economy in the wake of the economic downturn brought about by the subprime mortgage crisis and the
resulting credit crunch. The bill includes federal tax cuts, expansion of unemployment benefits and other social welfare provisions,
and domestic spending in education, healthcare, and infrastructure, including the energy structure. The new law also includes
numerous non-economic recovery related items, including a limitation on executive compensation in federally aided banks.

Homeowner Affordability and Stability Plan

On February 18, 2009, the Homeowner Affordability and Stability Plan (HASP) was announced by the President of the United
States. HASP is intended to support a recovery in the housing market and ensure that workers can continue to pay off their
mortgages through the following elements:

« Provide access to low-cost refinancing for responsible homeowners suffering from falling home prices.
* A $75 billion homeowner stability initiative to prevent foreclosure and help responsible families stay in their homes.
= Support low mortgage rates by strengthening confidence in Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.

More details regarding HASP are expected to be announced. We continue to monitor these developments and assess their potential
impact on our business.

Other Legislation

The Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act (“FACT”) was signed into law on December 4, 2003. This law extends the
previously existing Fair Credit Reporting Act. New provisions added by FACT address the growing problem of identity theft.
Consumers will be able to initiate a fraud alert when they are victims of identity theft, and credit reporting agencies will have
additional duties. Consumers will also be entitled to obtain free credit reports through the credit beaures, and will be granted
certain additional privacy rights.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 was enacted to enhance penalties for accounting and auditing improprieties at publicly traded
companies and to protect investors by improving the accuracy and reliability of corporate disclosures under the federal securities
laws. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act generally applies to all companies, including the Company, that file or are required to file periodic
reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act. The
legislation includes provisions, among other things, governing the services that can be provided by a public company’s independent
auditors and the procedures for approving such services, requiring the chief executive officer and principal accounting officer to
certify certain matters relating to the company’s periodic filings under the Exchange Act, requiring expedited filings of reports by
insiders of their securities transactions and containing other provisions relating to insider conflicts of interest, increasing disclosure
requirements relating to critical financial accounting policies and their application, increasing penalties for securities law
violations, and creating a new public accounting oversight board, a regulatory body subject to SEC jurisdiction with broad powers
to set auditing, quality control, and ethics standards for accounting firms. In response to the legislation, the national securities
exchanges and NASDAQ have adopted new rules relating to certain matters, including the independence of members of a
company’s audit committee as a condition to listing or continued listing.

In addition, Congress is often considering some financial industry legislation. The Company cannot predict how any new
legislation, or new rules adopted by the federal banking agencies, may affect its business in the future.

In addition to federal banking law, the Bank is subject to the Pennsylvania Banking Code. The Banking Code was amended in late
2000 to provide more complete “parity” in the powers of state-chartered institutions compared to national banks and federal
savings banks doing business in Pennsylvania. Pennsylvania banks have the same ability to form financial subsidiaries authorized
by the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, as do national banks.

Environmental Laws
Environmentally related hazards have become a source of high risk and potential liability for financial institutions relating to their
loans. Environmentally contaminated properties owned by an institution’s borrowers may result in a drastic reduction in the value



of the collateral securing the institution’s loans to such borrowers, high environmental clean up costs to the borrower affecting its
ability to repay the loans, the subordination of any lien in favor of the institution to a state or federal lien securing clean up costs,
and liability to the institution for clean up costs if it forecloses on the contaminated property or becomes involved in the
management of the borrower. The Company is not aware of any borrower who is currently subject to any environmental
investigation or clean up proceeding which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of
operations of the Company.

Effect of Government Monetary Policies

The earnings of the Company are and will be affected by domestic economic conditions and the monetary and fiscal policies of
the United States Government and its agencies. The monetary policies of the FRB have had, and will likely continue to have, an
important impact on the operating results of commercial banks through its power to implement national monetary policy in order,
among other things, to curb inflation or combat a recession. The FRB has a major effect upon the levels of bank loans, investments,
and deposits through its open market operations in the United States Government securities and through its regulation of, among
other things, the discount rate on borrowing of member banks and the reserve requirements against member bank deposits. It is
not possible to predict the nature and impact of future changes in monetary and fiscal policies.

DESCRIPTION OF BANK

History and Business

Jersey Shore State Bank (“Bank™) was incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as a state bank in 1934
and became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company on July 12, 1983.

As of December 31, 2008, the Bank had total assets of $643,302,000; total shareholders’ equity of $49,327,000 and total deposits
of $423,411,000. The Bank’s deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation for the maximum amount
provided under current law.

The Bank engages in business as a commercial bank, doing business at several locations in Lycoming, Clinton, and Centre
Counties, Pennsylvania. The Bank offers insurance, securities brokerage services, annuity and mutual fund investment products,
and financial planning through its wholly owned subsidiary, The M Group, Inc. D/B/A The Comprehensive Financial Group.

Services offered by the Bank include accepting time, demand and savings deposits including Super NOW accounts, statement
savings accounts, money market accounts, fixed rate certificates of deposit, and club accounts. Its services also include making
secured and unsecured business and consumer loans that include financing commercial transactions as well as construction and
residential mortgage loans and revolving credit loans with overdraft protection.

The Bank’s loan portfolio mix can be classified into four principal categories. These are real estate, agricultural, commercial, and
consumer. Real estate loans can be further segmented into construction and land development, farmland, one-to-four family
residential, multi-family, and commercial or industrial. Qualified borrowers are defined by policy and our underwriting standards.
Owner provided equity requirements range from 20% to 30% with a first lien status required. Terms are generally restricted to
between 10 and 20 years with the exception of construction and land development, which are limited to one to five years. Real
estate appraisals, property construction verifications, and site visitations comply with policy and industry regulatory standards.

Prospective residential mortgage customer’s repayment ability is determined from information contained in the application and
recent income tax returns. Emphasis is on credit, employment, income, and residency verification. Broad hazard insurance is
always required and flood insurance where applicable. In the case of construction mortgages, builders risk insurance is requested.

Agricultural loans for the purchase or improvement of real estate must meet the Bank’s real estate underwriting criteria. The only
permissible exception is when a Farmers Home Loan Administration guaranty is obtained. Agricultural loans made for the
purchase of equipment are usually payable in five years, but never more than seven, depending upon the useful life of the purchased
asset. Minimum borrower equity ranges from 20% to 30%. Livestock financing criteria depends upon the nature of the operation.
Agricultural loans are also made for crop production purposes. Such loans are structured to repay within the production cycle and
not carried over into a subsequent year.

Commercial loans are made for the acquisition and improvement of real estate, purchase of equipment, and for working capital
purposes on a seasonal or revolving basis. General purpose working capital loans are also available with repayment expected
within one year. Equipment loans are generally amortized over three to seven years, with an owner equity contribution required
of at least 20% of the purchase price. Insurance coverage with the Bank as loss payee is required, especially in the case where the
equipment is rolling stock. It is also a general policy to collateralize non-real estate loans with the asset purchased and, dependant
upon loan terms, junior liens are filed on other available assets. Financial information required on all commercial mortgages
includes the most current three years balance sheets and income statements and projections on income to be developed through the
project. In the case of corporations and partnerships, the principals are often asked to indebt themselves personally as well.

Seasonal and revolving lines of credit are offered for working capital purposes. Collateral for such a loan includes the pledge of
inventory and/or receivables. Drawing availability is usually 50% of inventory and 75% of eligible receivables. Eligible
receivables are defined as invoices less than 90 days delinquent. Exclusive reliance is very seldom placed on such collateral;
therefore, other lienable assets are also taken into the collateral pool. Where reliance is placed on inventory and accounts
receivable, the applicant must provide financial information including agings on a monthly basis. In addition, the guaranty of the
principals is usually obtained.

Letter of Credit availability is limited to standbys where the customer is well known to the Bank. Credit criteria is the same as that
utilized in making a direct loan. Collateral is obtained in most cases, and whenever the expiration date is beyond one year.

Consumer loan products include second mortgages, automobile financing, small loan requests, overdraft check lines, and PHEAA
referral loans. Our policy includes standards used in the industry on debt service ratios and terms are consistent with prudent
underwriting standards and the use of proceeds. Verifications are made of employment and residency, along with credit history.



Second mortgages are confined to equity borrowing and home improvements. Terms are generally ten years or less and rates are
fixed. Loan to collateral value criteria is 80% or less and verifications are made to determine values. Automobile financing is
generally restricted to five years and done on a direct basis. The Bank, as a practice, does not floor plan and therefore does not
discount dealer paper. Small loan requests are to accommodate personal needs such as the purchase of small appliances or for the
payment of taxes. Overdraft check lines are limited to $5,000 or less.

The Bank’s investment portfolio is analyzed and priced on a monthly basis. Investments are made in U.S. Treasuries, U.S. Agency
issues, bank qualified municipal bonds, corporate bonds, and corporate stocks which consist of Pennsylvania bank stocks. Bonds
with BAA or better ratings are used, unless a local issue is purchased that has a lesser or no rating. Factors taken into consideration
when investments are purchased include liquidity, the Company’s tax position, tax equivalent yield, third party investment ratings,
and the policies of the Asset/Liability Committee.

The banking environment in Lycoming, Clinton, and Centre Counties, Pennsylvania is highly competitive. The Bank operates
thirteen full service offices in these markets and competes for loans and deposits with numerous commercial banks, savings and
loan associations, and other financial institutions. The economic base of the region is developed around small business, health care,
educational facilities (college and public schools), light manufacturing industries, and agriculture.

The Bank has a relatively stable deposit base and no material amount of deposits is obtained from a single depositor or group of
depositors, excluding public entities that account for approximately 10% of total deposits. Although the Bank has regular
opportunities to bid on pools of funds of $100,000 or more in the hands of municipalities, hospitals, and others, it does not rely on
these monies to fund loans or intermediate or longer-term investments.

The Bank has not experienced any significant seasonal fluctuations in the amount of its deposits.

Supervision and Regulation

The earnings of the Bank are affected by the policies of regulatory authorities including the FDIC and the FRB. An important
function of the FRB is to regulate the money supply and interest rates. Among the instruments used to implement these objectives
are open market operations in U.S. Government Securities, changes in reserve requirements against member bank deposits, and
limitations on interest rates that member banks may pay on time and savings deposits. These instruments are used in varying
combinations to influence overall growth and distribution of bank loans, investments on deposits, and their use may also affect
interest rates charged on loans or paid for deposits.

The policies and regulations of the FRB have had and will probably continue to have a significant effect on the Bank’s deposits,
loans and investment growth, as well as the rate of interest earned and paid, and are expected to affect the Bank’s operation in the
future. The effect of such policies and regulations upon the future business and earnings of the Bank cannot accurately be
predicted.

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

The following sets forth several risk factors that are unique to the Company.

Changes in interest rates could reduce our income, cash flows and asset values.

Our income and cash flows and the value of our assets depend to a great extent on the difference between the interest rates we earn
on interest-earning assets, such as loans and investment securities, and the interest rates we pay on interest-bearing liabilities such
as deposits and borrowings. These rates are highly sensitive to many factors which are beyond our control, including general
economic conditions and policies of various governmental and regulatory agencies and, in particular, the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System. Changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest rates, will influence not only the interest
we receive on our loans and investment securities and the amount of interest we pay on deposits and borrowings but will also affect
our ability to originate loans and obtain deposits and the value of our investment portfolio. If the rate of interest we pay on our
deposits and other borrowings increases more than the rate of interest we earn on our loans and other investments, our net interest
income, and therefore our earnings, could be adversely affected. Our earnings also could be adversely affected if the rates on our
loans and other investments fall more quickly than those on our deposits and other borrowings.

Economic conditions either nationally or locally in areas in which our operations are concentrated may adversely affect our
business.

Deterioration in local, regional. national or global economic conditions could cause us to experience a reduction in deposits and
new loans, an increase in the number of borrowers who default on their loans and a reduction in the value of the collateral securing
their loans, all of which could adversely affect our performance and financial condition. Unlike larger banks that are more
geographically diversified, we provide banking and financial services locally. Therefore, we are particularly vulnerable to adverse
local economic conditions.

Our financial condition and results of operations would be adversely affected if our allowance for loan losses is not
sufficient to absorb actual losses or if we are required to increase our allowance.

Despite our underwriting criteria, we may experience loan delinquencies and losses. In order to absorb losses associated with
nonperforming loans, we maintain an allowance for loan losses based on, among other things, historical experience, an evaluation
of economic conditions, and regular reviews of delinquencies and loan portfolio quality. Determination of the allowance inherently
involves a high degree of subjectivity and requires us to make significant estimates of current credit risks and future trends, all of
which may undergo material changes. At any time there are likely to be loans in our portfolio that will result in losses but that
have not been identified as nonperforming or potential problem credits. We cannot be sure that we will be able to identify
deteriorating credits before they become nonperforming assets or that we will be able to limit losses on those loans that are
identified. We may be required to increase our allowance for loan losses for any of several reasons. Federal regulators, in reviewing
our loan portfolio as part of a regulatory examination, may request that we increase our allowance for loan losses. Changes in
economic conditions affecting borrowers, new information regarding existing loans, identification of additional problem loans and



other factors, both within and outside of our control, may require an increase in our allowance. In addition, if charge-offs in future
periods exceed our allowance for loan losses, we will need additional increases in our allowance for loan losses. Any increases in
our allowance for loan losses will result in a decrease in our net income and, possibly, our capital, and may materially affect our
results of operations in the period in which the allowance is increased.

Many of our loans are secured, in whole or in part, with real estate collateral which is subject to declines in value.

In addition to considering the financial strength and cash flow characteristics of a borrower, we often secure our loans with real
estate collateral. Real estate values and the real estate market are generally affected by, among other things, changes in local,
regional or national economic conditions, fluctuations in interest rates and the availability of loans to potential purchasers, changes
in tax laws and other governmental statutes, regulations and policies, and acts of nature. The real estate collateral provides an
alternate source of repayment in the event of default by the borrower. If real estate prices in our markets decline, the value of the
real estate collateral securing our loans could be reduced. If we are required to liquidate real estate collateral securing loans during
a period of reduced real estate values to satisfy the debt, our earnings and capital could be adversely affected.

Competition may decrease our growth or profits.

We face substantial competition in all phases of our operations from a variety of different competitors, including commercial
banks, savings and loan associations, mutual savings banks, credit unions, consumer finance companies, factoring companies,
leasing companies, insurance companies, and money market mutual funds. There is very strong competition among financial
services providers in our principal service area. Our competitors may have greater resources, higher lending limits, or larger
branch systems than we do. Accordingly, they may be able to offer a broader range of products and services as well as better pricing
for those products and services than we can.

In addition, some of the financial services organizations with which we compete are not subject to the same degree of regulation
as is imposed on federally insured financial institutions. As a result, those nonbank competitors may be able to access funding and
provide various services more easily or at less cost than we can, adversely affecting our ability to compete effectively.

The value of certain investment securities is volatile and future declines or other-than-temporary impairments could
materially adversely affect our future earnings and regulatory capital.

Continued volatility in the market value for certain of our investment securities, whether caused by changes in market perceptions
of credit risk, as reflected in the expected market yield of the security, or actual defaults in the portfolio could result in significant
fluctuations in the value of the securities. This could have a material adverse impact on our accumulated other comprehensive loss
and shareholders” equity depending on the direction of the fluctuations. Furthermore, future downgrades or defaults in these
securities could result in future classifications of investment securities as other than temporarily impaired. This could have a
material impact on our future earnings, although the impact on shareholders’ equity will be offset by any amount already included
in other comprehensive income for securities where we have recorded temporary impairment.

We may be adversely affected by government regulation.

The banking industry is heavily regulated. Banking regulations are primarily intended to protect the federal deposit insurance funds
and depositors, not shareholders. Changes in the laws, regulations, and regulatory practices affecting the banking industry may
increase our costs of doing business or otherwise adversely affect us and create competitive advantages for others. Regulations
affecting banks and financial services companies undergo continuous change, and we cannot predict the ultimate effect of these
changes, which could have a material adverse effect on our profitability or financial condition.

We rely on our management and other key personnel, and the loss of any of them may adversely affect our operations.

We are and will continue to be dependent upon the services of our executive management team. In addition, we will continue to
depend on our ability to retain and recruit key commercial loan officers. The unexpected loss of services of any key management
personnel or commercial loan officers could have an adverse effect on our business and financial condition because of their skills,
knowledge of our market, years of industry experience, and the difficulty of promptly finding qualified replacement personnel.

Environmental liability associated with lending activities could result in losses.

In the course of our business, we may foreclose on and take title to properties securing our loans. If hazardous substances were
discovered on any of these properties, we could be liable to governmental entities or third parties for the costs of remediation of
the hazard, as well as for personal injury and property damage. Many environmental laws can impose liability regardless of
whether we knew of, or were responsible for, the contamination. In addition, if we arrange for the disposal of hazardous or toxic
substances at another site, we may be liable for the costs of cleaning up and removing those substances from the site even if we
neither own nor operate the disposal site. Environmental laws may require us to incur substantial expenses and may materially
limit use of properties we acquire through foreclosure, reduce their value or limit our ability to sell them in the event of a default
on the loans they secure. In addition, future laws or more stringent interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to existing
laws may increase our exposure to environmental liability.

Failure to implement new technologies in our operations may adversely affect our growth or profits.

The market for financial services, including banking services and consumer finance services is increasingly affected by advances
in technology, including developments in telecommunications, data processing, computers, automation, Internet-based banking,
and telebanking. Our ability to compete successfully in our markets may depend on the extent to which we are able to exploit such
technological changes. However, we can provide no assurance that we will be able to properly or timely anticipate or implement
such technologies or properly train our staff to use such technologies. Any failure to adapt to new technologies could adversely
affect our business, financial condition or operating results.

An investment in our common stock is not an insured deposit.

Our common stock is not a bank deposit and, therefore, is not insured against loss by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation,
commonly referred to as the FDIC, any other deposit insurance fund or by any other public or private entity. Investment in our
common stock is subject to the same market forces that affect the price of common stock in any company.




ITEM 1B - UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2 PROPERTIES
The Company owns and leases its properties. Listed herewith are the locations of properties owned or leased as of December 31,
2008, in which the banking offices are located: all properties are in good condition and adequate for the Bank’s purposes:

Office Address Ownership

Main 115 South Main Street Owned
P.O. Box 5098
Jersey Shore, Pennsylvania 17740

Bridge Street 112 Bridge Street Owned
Jersey Shore, Pennsylvania 17740

DuBoistown 2675 Euclid Avenue Owned
Williamsport, Pennsylvania 17702

Williamsport 300 Market Street Owned
P.O. Box 967
Williamsport, Pennsylvania 17703-0967

Montgomery 9094 Rt. 405 Highway Owned
Montgomery, Pennsylvania 17752

Lock Haven 4 West Main Street Owned

Mill Hall

Spring Mills

Centre Hall

Zion

State College

State College

Montoursville

Lock Haven, Pennsylvania 17745

(Inside Wal-Mart), 173 Hogan Boulevard
Mill Hall, Pennsylvania 17751

3635 Penns Valley Road, P.O. Box 66
Spring Mills, Pennsylvania 16875

2842 Earlystown Road
Centre Hall, Pennsylvania 16828

100 Cobblestone Road
Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823

(Inside Wal-Mart), 1665 North Atherton Place
State College, Pennsylvania 16803

2050 North Atherton Street
State College, Pennsylvania 16803

820 Broad Street
Montoursville, Pennsylvania 17754

Under Lease

Owned

Land Under Lease

Under Lease

Under Lease

Land Under Lease

Under Lease

The M Group, Inc. 705 Washington Boulevard Under Lease
D/B/A The Comprehensive Williamsport, Pennsylvania 17701
Financial Group

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is subject to lawsuits and claims arising out of its business. In the opinion of management, after review and
consultation with counsel, any proceedings that may be assessed will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated
financial position of the Company.

ITEM 4 SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2008.




PART I1

ITEM 5 MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON STOCK, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASE OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Common Stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “PWOD”. The following table sets forth
(1) the quarterly high and low close prices for a share of the Company’s Common Stock during the periods indicated, and (2)
quarterly dividends on a share of the Common Stock with respect to each quarter since January 1, 2006. The following quotations
represent prices between buyers and sellers and do not include retail markup, markdown or commission. They may not necessarily
represent actual transactions.

Dividends
High Low Declared
2006: - - o
FArSt QUATTET . .ottt e et et e e e e e $ 38.75 S 3775 8 0.42
T 1 B 1 I e e e e e 39.50 36.50 0.43
TN GUATEET: s coitnscuniwrmsmimm srmis o e et MLy tal e Sl ST 38.48 37.02 0.44
FOUrH QUATIRL s oo mvann s s viats s s s aa s 38.59 36.20 0.44
2007:
25101 275 13 21 11 ey PR PN g P $ 37.75 S 35.00 $ 0.44
Second QUATTET . . ..ottt et e e 35.00 33.86 0.44
Third QUATTET. . . . .ottt e et e e e e e 35.00 30.80 0.45
FOUPtHIQUATEEE o v wisgessosimmman wossiome b omsmmmnacss dhamieiine-siinins s miEmaamsas 32.50 30.33 0.46
2008:
IR RO 1 & 5t O doioul gty el o A Mgt & o $ 3347 $ 29.66 S 0.46
SOCIOE GORINE 5 13 a0 D) G RS s S (E P Fi GTaeial e i 33.15 33.01 0.46
Third quarter. . .. ... ...t et e s 35.00 29.00 0.46
Lo T T e eO B OBBG PG PRSENGSPN OGN DOGO O BB PRESPLaS 30.40 23.00 0.46

The Bank has paid cash dividends since 1941. The Company has paid dividends since the effective date of its formation as a bank
holding company. It is the present intention of the Registrant’s Board of Directors to continue the dividend payment policy;
however, further dividends must necessarily depend upon earnings, financial condition, appropriate legal restrictions, and other
factors relevant at the time the Board of Directors of the Company considers dividend policy. Cash available for dividend
distributions to shareholders of the Company primarily comes from dividends paid by the Bank to the Company. Therefore, the
restrictions on the Bank’s dividend payments are directly applicable to the Company. See also the information appearing in Note
18 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information related
to dividend restrictions.

Under the Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law of 1988 a corporation may not pay a dividend, if after giving effect thereto, the
corporation would be unable to pay its debts as they become due in the usual course of business and after giving effect thereto the
total assets of the corporation would be less than the sum of its total liabilities plus the amount that would be needed, if the
corporation were to be dissolved at the time of the distribution, to satisfy the preferential rights upon dissolution of the shareholders
whose preferential rights are superior to those receiving the dividend.

As of March 3, 2009, the Company had approximately 1,261 shareholders of record.

Following is a schedule of the shares of the Company’s common stock purchased by the Company during the fourth quarter of
2008.

Total Number of Maximum Number (or
Shares (or Units) Approximate Dollar Value)
Total Number of Average Price Paid Purchased as Part of Shares (or Units) that
Shares (or Units) per Share (or Unit) of Publicly Announced May Yet Be Purchased
Period Purchased Purchased Plans or Programs Under the Plans or Programs
Month #1 (October 1-
October 31, 2008) 5,000 $ Fra B 5,000 03,344
Month #2 (November |-
November 30, 2008) 10,000 25.60 10,000 83,344

Month #3 (December |-
December 31, 2008) 5,000 25.25 5,000 78,344




Set forth below is a line graph comparing the yearly dollar changes in the cumulative shareholder return on the Company’s common
stock against the cumulative total return of the S&P 500 Stock Index, NASDAQ Bank Index, and NASDAQ Composite for the
period of five fiscal years assuming the investment of $100.00 on December 31, 2003 and assuming the reinvestment of dividends.
The shareholder return shown on the graph below is not necessarily indicative of future performance.

Total Return Performance
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12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08
Period Ending
Index 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08
Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. 100.00 107.34 108.19 110.08 99.89 75.28
S&P 500 100.00 110.88 116.33 134.70 142.10 89.53
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 108.59 110.08 120.56 132.39 78.72

NASDAQ Bank Index 100.00 110.99 106.18 117.87 91.85 69.88




ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth certain financial data as of and for cach of the years in the five-year period ended December 31, 2008.

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Consolidated Statement of
Income Data:

INtErEStINCOMS i e cvrerminma s SadassEsTEs Ve | 36,108 $ 35949 § 33,753  § 30903 S 29,845
THRESrEst EXPEASE .« cvvwcimwan wis it miaiemsmes woms 14,832 16.447 14,210 10,381 8,768
Net interest iNCOME . . ..o v vt v e e e 21,276 19,502 19,543 20,522 21,077
Provision for loan losses ... ................... 375 150 635 720 465
Net interest income after provision

Tor 10BN TO8SES: s asmsmie sy mumadoa s Taes 20,901 19,352 18,908 19,802 20,612
NON-nterest MEOME . coanrwme s wumssmmass v 5.456 7.478 9,029 9,431 8,918
Non-interest eXpense. . . ... ..covvuewereenen.n. 17.949 17.316 16,329 15,108 14,184
Income before incometaxes ................... 8.408 9,514 11,608 14,125 15,346
Applicable income taxes . ..................... 405 637 1.961 3.224 4.263
NEtINCOME .+ vttt ettt e e e eee e S 8003 $ 8.877 $ 9.647 § 10,901 § 11,083

Consolidated Balance Sheet at
End of Period:

Total a88et8cre s o5k Emvaia it s i s § 652803 § 628,138 § 592285 § 568,668 § 546,703
LOANS s aaneaiami svi s s s mmi s S ol Bn 381,478 360,478 360,384 338,438 324,505
Allowance forloanlosses . .................... (4.356) (4,130) (4,185) (3.679) (3,338)
DEPOSIES cvorasimn svnwsommmie i i Srm s aees 421,368 389,022 395,191 352,529 356,836
Lohgsterin debt —6ther .o ven semwmssasm ssse 86,778 106,378 82,878 84,478 75,878
Shareholders’ equity . ........coviueiiinenonn. 61.027 70,559 74,594 73,919 73,165
Per Share Data:
Earnings pershare-basic..................... b 207 § 228 § 245 § 275 % 2.78
Earnings per share - diluted ................... 2.07 2.28 2.45 2.74 2.78
Cash dividends declared ...................... 1.84 1.79 1.73 1.56 1.47
BookValUe. oo s smmpemes i i mivs 15.93 18.21 19.12 18.59 18.36
Number of shares outstanding, at

endofperiod .......... .. i 3.831.500 3,875,632 3,900,742 3,975,787 3,985,832
Average number of shares

outstanding basic . . ...... ... iiiiiiin s 3,859,724 3,886,277 3,934,138 3,971,926 3,990,008

Selected financial ratios:
Return on average

sharcholders’ equity . ................... 12.02% 12.14% 12.93% 14.54% 15.49%
Return on average total assets . .. ............ 1.27% 1.49% 1.67% 1.97% 2.06%
Net interest income to average
interest earning assets . .........coveninaann 4.14% 3.95% 4.06% 4.29% 4.32%
Dividend payoutratio .. ...........co0viuinan. 88.67% 78.33% 70.51% 57.10% 52.72%
Average shareholders’ equity to
average total assets. .. ............. ... .. ... 10.53% 12.23% 12.92% 13.56% 13.30%
Loans to deposits, at end of period . . ............ 90.53% 92.66% 91.19% 96.00% 90.94%

Per share data and number of shares outstanding have been adjusted to give retroactive effect to a six for five stock split issued November
18, 2005.

ITEM 7 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation in the Annual Report are incorporated in
their entirety by reference under this Item 7.
ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk for the Company is comprised primarily from interest rate risk exposure and liquidity risk. Interest rate risk and liquidity
risk management is performed at the Bank level as well as the Company level. The Company’s interest rate sensitivity is monitored




by management through selected interest rate risk measures produced internally. Additional information and details are provided
in the Interest Sensitivity section of Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

Generally, management believes the Company is well positioned to respond expeditiously when the market interest rate outlook
changes.

ITEM 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto contained in the Annual Report are incorporated in their
entirety by reference under this Item 8.

ITEM 9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s President
and Chief Executive Officer along with the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluated of the effectiveness as of
December 31, 2008 of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under
Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Based upon that
evaluation, the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer along with the Company’s Chief Financial Officer concluded that
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2008.

There have been no material changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2008
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency (as defined in Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Auditing Standard
No. 2), or a combination of significant deficiencies, that results in there being more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by management or
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008.
Management’s assessment did not identify any material weaknesses in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting,

In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Because there were no material weaknesses discovered,
management believes that, as of December 31, 2008, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective.

S.R. Snodgrass, A.C. an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the consolidated financial statements included
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, as part of the audit, has issued a report, which appears below, on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008.

Date: March 10, 2009 / '
Chief Exec Officer

Chief Financial Officer



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

& SNODGRASS

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
AND CONSULTANTS

Board of Directors and Sharecholders
Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008,
based on criteria established in /nternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the
accompanying Report on Management’s Assessment of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2008, and our report dated March 10, 2009, expressed an unqualified opinion.

i AL

Wexford, Pennsylvania
March 10, 2009

P

S.R. Snodgrass, A.C.
1000 Stonewood Drive, Suite 200 Wexford, PA 15090-8399 Phone: 724~934-0344 Facsimile: 724~934~0345




ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART I11
ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information appearing under the captions “The Board of Directors and Committees,” “Election of Directors,” “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” “Principal Officers of the Corporation,” “Certain Transactions,” and “Audit
Committee Financial Expert” in the Company’s Proxy Statement dated March 24, 2009 (the “Proxy Statement™) is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information appearing under the captions “Compensation of Directors,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation,” “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Compensation Committee and Benefits Committee Report,” and
“Executive Compensation™ in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS
AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information appearing under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of
securities remaining

Number of available for future
securities to be Weighted- issuance under

issued upon average equity compensation

exercise of exercise of plans (excluding

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

outstanding options,

warrants and rights

securities reflected in
column (a))

Plan Category (a) (b) ()

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 1,980 $ 28.27 —

Equity compensation plans
not approved by security holders - — —

Total 1,980 $ 28.27 —




ITEM 13  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

There have been no material transactions between the Company and the Bank, nor any material transactions proposed, with any
Director or Executive Officer of the Company and the Bank, or any associate of the foregoing persons. The Company and the
Bank have had, and intend to continue to have, banking and financial transactions in the ordinary course of business with Directors
and Officers of the Company and the Bank and their associates on comparable terms and with similar interest rates as those
prevailing from time to time for other customers of the Company and the Bank.

Total loans outstanding from the Bank at December 31, 2008 to the Company’s and the Bank’s Officers and Directors as a group
and members of their immediate families and companies in which they had an ownership interest of 10% or more was $8,942,000
or approximately 14.65% of the total equity capital of the Company. Loans to such persons were made in the ordinary course of
business, were made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with other persons, and did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other
unfavorable features. See also the information appearing in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere
in the Annual Report.

In addition, the information appearing under the caption “Election of Directors™ in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information appearing in the Proxy Statement under the captions, “Audit Fees,” “Audit-Related Fees.” “Tax Fees,” “All Other
Fees,” and “Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures™ is incorporated herein by reference.




ITEM 15

(b) Exhibits:
(3)

3)
(10)

(10)
(10)

(10)

(10)

(10)

(21)
(23)
3D
(31
(32)
(32)

PART IV

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)l. Financial Statements
The following consolidated financial statements and reports are set forth in Item §&:
Report of Independent Auditors
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Statement of Income
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2. Financial Statement Schedules
Financial statement schedules are omitted because the required information is either not applicable, not required
or is shown in the respective financial statements or in the notes thereto.

(i)
(i)
(i)
(i)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(1)
(11)
(i)
(i)

Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant, as presently in effect (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(i)
of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005).

Bylaws of the Registrant as presently in effect (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) of the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 17, 2005).

Employment Agreement, dated August, 1991, between Jersey Shore State Bank and Ronald A. Walko
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on form S-4, No. 333-
65821).%

Employee Severance Benefit Plan, dated May 30, 1996, for Ronald A. Walko (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on form S-4, No. 333-65821).*

Consulting Agreement, dated July 18, 2005 between Hubert A. Valencik and Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
July 18, 2005).

Employment Agreement, dated January 11, 1999, among Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc., Jersey Shore State
Bank and William H. Rockey (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Registrant’s Annual Report
on 10-K filed on March 14, 2008).*

Amendment and Restatement of the Jersey Shore State Bank Director Deferred Fee Agreement, dated as of
October 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 (vii) of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on form S-4, No. 333-65821).*

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Certified Public Accountants.

Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

*Denotes compensatory plan or arrangement.
EXHIBIT INDEX

(21)
(23)
(31)
(31)
(32)
(32)

(i)
(11)
(i)
(i)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Certified Public Accountants.

Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.
Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.



Exhibit 21
Subsidiaries of the Registrant

State or Jurisdiction Under

Law of Whliﬂfl Organized
Jersey Shore State Bank .. ... . Pennsylvania
Woods Real Estate Development Company, Inc. .................... Pennsylvania
Woods Investent Company: TG, vucswms sy s ssrewmss s e Delaware
The M Group, Inc. (Subsidiary of the Bank) ....................... Pennsylvania

Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Nos. 333-134585 and 333-58682) on Form S-8 of
Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. of our reports dated March 10, 2009 relating to our audits of the consolidated financial statements and
internal controls over financial reporting, which appear in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. for the
year ended December 31, 2008.

L by AC

Wexford, PA
March 10, 2009




Exhibit 31(i)
Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer

I, Ronald A. Walko, certify that:

1. T have

reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The Company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:

d.

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report
is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;

5. The Company’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the audit committee of Company’s Board of Directors:

.

all significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information;

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2009

Ronald A. lko
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31(ii)
Rule 13a-14(a)/Rule 15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer

[, Brian L. Knepp, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The Company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report
is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;

5. The Company’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the audit committee of Company’s Board of Directors:

a. all significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information;

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Eeeon T
Brian L. Knepp
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 10, 2009




Exhibit 32 (i)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company™) on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Ronald A. Walko,
Chief Executive Officer, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result

of operations of the Company.

WMA/

Ronald A. Walga/

Chief Executive Officer

March 10, 2009

Exhibit 32 (ii)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), [, Brian L. Knepp,
Chief Financial Officer, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result

of operations of the Company.

Loeon I Zp
Brian L. Knepp
Chief Financial Officer

March 10, 2009



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

M 10, 2609 PENNS WOODS BANCORP, INC.
A S BY: RONALD A. WALKO,
= President & Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirementsof the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Ronald A. Walko, President & Chief Executive March 10, 2009
Officer and Director (Pripejpal Executive Officer)

(Principal Fimancial Officer)

For T

Michael J. Casale, Jr., Director March 10, 2009

Brian L. Kne ief Financial Officer March 10, 2009

Director March 10, 2009

James M. Furey II, Dir March 10, 2009

D. Michael Hawbaker, Director March 10, 2009
Leroy H. Keiler I1I, Director March 10, 2009
R. Edward Nestlerode, Jr.. Director March 10, 2009
Q&m@g@dw@

James E_Plummer, Director March 10, 2009
William H. Rockey, Sr. Vice President March 10, 2009

and Director
%jtvﬂajh ,
Hubert A. Valencik, Director March 10, 2009




Management & Board of Directors
(Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. & Jersey Shore State Bank)

Officers
RO AL WHIKG: . o uncsmmsmmmensssmummomrss sy st President & Chiel Executive Officer of
Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc. & Jersey Shore State Bank
William H. Rockey ............... Senior Vice President & Secretary of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.
& Jersey Shore State Bank
AT RIES s vmrem s s R Senior Vice President & Chief Credit Officer
Panl:R., Mattolen, ... o we swsismmmms s e Senior Vice President & Chief Operating Officer of
The Comprehensive Financial Group
Bt L KIEPD vosvansmsamanvee s vimmmyaae Chief Financial Officer/Cashier & Assistant Secretary
Robert J. Glunk . ................ Vice President of Branch Administration & Business Development
Stephen:M: Tasselll - covinassinmmsnasnoss Senior Vice President & Commercial Loan Manager
(¢ o e e Senior Vice President
William PoYoung, Jr s s sais o o mis 5 S R i R e SR e EDP Systems Officer
LRon F KOSKIE, - oo T R S S M B e Vice President & Loan Officer
Gerald J. Seman. ... ..ottt i Vice President & Mortgage Officer
Lesie K-Benshoff: vunanvmmamanmarsnmssam Vice President & Bank Secrecy Operations Officer
JORN R PRV . o v v v wrsmss i mw o wwssnaimsecsons smisssis s e » Vice President & Chief Compliance Officer
Craig:A; Russell sacssainemimaimamesiayas e Vice President & Branch Manager
David R. Palski oo msssummmmmmmee s s snaresms s s Vice President & Branch Manager
Stephen G.Yohannan . ...... ..., Vice President & Regional Lending OfTicer
Marilyn R. Neyhart . .............. Assistant Secretary & Vice President Loan System Administrator
Larty G./GarveriCk .« v or vomaisscnen s Vice President & Loan Documentation & Review Officer
William VoMauck; s s veaniissausisa s Vice President/Computer Operations/IT
Michael AMUSIo. covcemanase s sas s p e Vice President & Commercial Loan Officer
L S e e R e e e e Controller
Tammiy L Gimsallus . o oo sniaasnssiminiasem s bl shatins Vice President & Branch Manager
Roxanna M. ChAPMaty . v cvvimsmmamm v i s smmis st s e Vice President of Loan Services

Registered Representatives For The Comprehensive Financial Group

Stephen DL Lowe. ...t e Williamsport Branch
Directors
Michael J. Casale, Jr . ..o it e Attorney, Casale & Bonner PC.
H: Thomas Pavis; It cowasmsanasunamsriniadeys Senior Vice President, Franklin Insurance Company
Jarmes M. Farev. L. .. cumwvamsmiv s g President & Owner, Eastern Wood Products Company
D. Michael Hawbaker. . ....................... Executive Vice President, Glenn O. Hawbaker, Inc.
Leroy H. Keiler; 111 . ccucenisiamumsnmam s s s meimiss Attorney, Leroy H. Keiler, 111
R. Edward Nestlerode, Jr. . ......... ... ........ Vice President of Nestlerode Contracting Co., Inc.
James EoPlummer . cvvus s ks Retired, Former President of Lock Haven Savings Bank:
Secretary, Jersey Shore State Bank
Hubert A. Valencik . ........... Retired, Former Senior Vice Presicent of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.;

Former Senior Vice President & Chief Operations Officer of
Jersey Shore State Bank

William: Hi Rockey: v swianvnisnissisia Senior Vice President of Penns Woods Bancorp, Inc.
& Jersey Shore State Bank
Rianatd:d, Walkois: o oodcbtanazan sotoemaza President & Chief Executive Officer of Penns Woods

Bancorp, Inc. & Jersey Shore State Bank

Honorary Directors

Phillip H. Bower
Lynn S. Bowes
Raymond D. Eck
William S. Frazier
Joseph B. Gehret, Sr.

Robert H. Kauffeld
Allan W. Lugg

Jay H. McCormick
Howard M. Thompson
James T. Wolyniec



MAIN OFFICE
Tammy L. Gunsallus, Manager
115 South Main Street, Jersey Shore, PA 17740
Phone (570) 398-2213
Monday & Tuesday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm
Wednesday 8:30 am to 1:00 pm
Thursday 8:30 am to 5:00 pm
Friday 8:30 am to 6:00 pm
Saturday Drive-In Only 8:30 am to 12:00 pm
Drive-up ATM Available

BRIDGE STREET OFFICE
Tammy L. Gunsallus, Manager
112 Bridge Street, Jersey Shore, PA 17740
Phone (570) 398-4400
Monday thru Wednesday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm
Thursday 8:30 am to 5:00 pm
Friday 8:30 am to 6:00 pm
Saturday 8:30 am to 12:00 pm

DUBOISTOWN OFFICE
Rebecca L. Frank, Manager
2675 Euclid Avenue, Williamsport, PA 17702
Phone (570) 326-3731
Monday & Tuesday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm
Wednesday 8:30 am to 1:00 pm
Thursday 8:30 am to 5:00 pm
Friday 8:30 am fo 6:00 pm
Saturday 8:30 am to 12:00 pm
Drive-up ATM Available

WILLIAMSPORT OFFICE
David R. Palski, Manager
300 Market Street, Williamsport, PA 17703-0967
Phone (570) 322-1111
Toll-Free 1-888-412-5772
Monday & Tuesday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm
Wednesday Lobby 8:30 am to 1:00 pm
Thursday 8:30 am to 5:00 pm
Friday 8:30 am to 6:00 pm
Saturday 8:30 am to 12:00 pm
Wednesday Drive-In open until 4:30 pm
Walk-up ATM available

MONTGOMERY OFFICE
Beverly S. Rupert, Manager
9094 Rt. 405 Highway, Montgomery, PA 17752
Phone (570) 547-6642
Monday & Tuesday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm

Wednesday 8:30 am to 1:00 pm
Thursday 8:30 am to 5:00 pm

Friday 8:30 am to 6:00 pm
Saturday 8:30 am to 12:00 pm

Drive-up ATM Available




LOCK HAVEN OFFICE
Craig A. Russell, Manager
4 West Main Street, Lock Haven, PA 17745
Phone (570) 748-7785
Monday & Tuesday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm
Wednesday 8:30 am to 1:00 pm
Thursday 8:30 am to 5:00 pm
Friday 8:30 am to 6:00 pm
Saturday 8:30 am to 12:00 pm
Drive-up ATM available

MILL HALL OFFICE
Craig A. Russell, Manager
(Inside WAL-MART)
173 Hogan Boulevard, Mill Hall, PA 17751
Phone (570) 748-8680
Monday thru Wednesday 9:00 am to 6:00 pm
Thursday & Friday 9:00 am to 8:00 pm
Saturday 9:00 am to 4:00 pm
Walk-up ATM available

SPRING MILLS OFFICE
Bonnie H. Ripka, Manager
3635 Penns Valley Road, Spring Mills, PA 16875
Phone (814) 422-8836
Monday thru Wednesday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm
Thursday 8:30 am to 5:00 pm
Friday 8:30 am to 6:00 pm
Saturday 8:30 am to 12:00 pm
Drive-up ATM available

CENTRE HALL OFFICE
Bonnie H. Ripka, Manager
2842 Earlystown Road, Centre Hall, PA 16828
Phone (814) 364-1600
Monday & Tuesday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm
Wednesday 8:30 am to 1:00 pm
Thursday 8:30 am to 5:00 pm
Friday 8:30 am to 6:00 pm
Saturday 8:30 am to 12:00 pm
Walk-up ATM available

ZION OFFICE
William H. Rockey, Manager
100 Cobblestone Road, Bellefonte, PA 16823
Phone (814) 383-2700
Monday & Tuesday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm
Wednesday 8:30 am to 1:00 pm
Thursday 8:30 am to 5:00 pm
Friday 8:30 am to 6:00 pm
Saturday 8:30 am to 12:00 pm
Drive-up ATM available




STATE COLLEGE OFFICE
Patricia K. Stauffer, Manager
2050 North Atherton Street, State College, PA 16803
Phone (814) 235-1710
Monday thru Wednesday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm
Thursday 8:30 am to 5:00 pm
Friday 8:30 am to 6:00 pm

Saturday 8:30 am to 12:00 pm

Drive-up ATM available

STATE COLLEGE WAL-MART OFFICE
Patricia K. Stauffer, Manager
1665 North Atherton Place, State College, PA 16803
Phone (814) 272-4788
Monday thru Friday 9:30 am to 6:30 pm
Saturday 9:30 am to 2:30 pm
Walk-up ATM available

MONTOURSVILLE OFFICE
Michelle M. Lawson, Manager
820 Broad Street, Montoursville, PA 17754
Phone (570) 368-1200
Monday thru Wednesday 8:30 am to 4:30 pm
Thursday 8:30 am to 5:00 pm
Friday 8:30 am to 6:00 pm
Saturday 8:30 am to 12:00 pm
Drive-up ATM available

THE M GROUP, INC.
D/B/A THE COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL GROUP
Paul R. Mamolen, COO
705 Washington Boulevard, Williamsport, PA 17701
Phone (570) 322-4627

INTERNET BANKING

www.jssb.com

TELEPHONE BANKING
Phone (570) 320-2029 or 1-877-520-2265

Member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation















